






As we continue to build CARD MRI up as a dynamic group of development-oriented 
institutions fit for the digital landscape, we must always recognize the very reason 
for us in undertaking this grand endeavor - our clients and members.

They are our inspiration, and their upliftment in life is our mission. We, as servants 
of social development, must always remind ourselves that our transformation has 
purpose.

Our cover aims to illustrate CARD MRI’s dedication towards our digital transformation 
while still maintaining the essential human connection we have with our clients and 
stakeholder partners. The motif of the wheel symbolizes that CARD MRI is purposely 
designed to move forward with the aid of technology, while the inset photographs 
showcase not only our institutions’ achievements but also meaningful moments with 
our clients and communities.

This is transformation with a mission.
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CARD MRI is a world-class leader in microfinance and community-based social 
development undertakings that improves the quality of life of socially-and-economically 
challenged women and families towards nation building.

CARD MRI is committed to:

• Empower socially-and-economically challenged women and families through      
 continuous access to financial, microinsurance, educational, livelihood, health   
 and other  capacity-building services that eventually transform them into   
 responsible citizens for their community and the environment;

• Enable the women members to gain control and ownership of financial and social   
 development institutions; and

• Partner with appropriate agencies, private institutions, and people and community    
 organizations to facilitate achievement of mutual goals.

Achieving 5-8-40 and Beyond 5



A decade ago, people might not have heard about 
microinsurance; but today, we are happy to see that the 
people are starting to recognize its reliability. There is 
a huge evolution in microinsurance, and we are glad to 
have taken a key part in it.

We expand our services to reach everybody, even 
those living in areas with low access to technology, 
and we are welcomed with curiosity and interest in our 
products. We ensure that there is a holistic development 
starting from inside the institution to the outside where 
clients are provided with quality services. We would not 
have made it through if not for the digital innovation we 
enthusiastically embraced.

The digital transformation we have undergone 
has made a huge impact in our system’s processes. 
It has allowed us to conveniently communicate, and 
pass information with less mistakes, especially in the 
encoding and validating of claims.

We focus on strengthening the participation of 
all the stakeholders, and we mobilize our people to 

reach the communities, especially the marginalized, 
in the implementation of our projects. Engaging the 
marginalized also enables us to be aware of the situation 
they are in. We are able to empathize, and consequently 
consider their need and capability when designing our 
products. With this approach, they are empowered, and 
we too, as facilitators for social transformation, become 
conscious agents for development.

This journey was not, is not and will not, be smooth-
sailing. There will be inevitable challenges along the 
way. Our digital transformation, for instance, challenges 
us to keep up with the trend. 

How do we innovate? How do we produce new 
products that would offer convenience for the clients? 
Apart from that, how do we come up with better 
systems and processes to lessen the manual work of 
our staff and consequently, provide them more time 
to do other productive work? How do we ensure that 
with the huge development of CPMI, we are able to take 
everyone with us and no one is forgotten? These are the 
questions that we are continuously addressing, and one 
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by one, answering.

This is not a sole effort. Our success is anchored on 
the success of CARD MRI, because as they expand their 
reach, we also are provided with greater venue to offer 
our products and services. We recognize the help of 
other institutions towards reaching the institution’s goals, 
particularly the 5-8-40. Through the unwavering efforts 
of the people behind our institution—the management, 
operations people, microinsurance supervisors and 

coordinators, we are able to get to where we are today. 
The collective efforts of all is the reason behind our 
successes.

Suffice to say that we are all on the right track. As 
long as we do not lose the heart to serve and provide 
quality services, and with the big help of digitalization, 
we ensure that the journey towards 5-8-40 will be 
achieved.

May S. Dawat
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With the collective effort of everybody from the 
top management of CARD Pioneer Microinsurance, Inc. 
to the operations staff, microinsurance coordinators 
and supervisors, we were able to increase our sales 
premium by 30%. We decided to tweak the effective 
interventions that we had done in 2017 because we also 
recognize the need to do something new and better.
  
Highlights of the Year

The continuous increase in sales has driven 
expectations of the management higher. We thought 
that the 5 or 10 percent increase in sales is not enough. 
We needed to do more by successfully executing the 
plans we have for 2018.

We launched our 1st travel incentive Pa-Lechon 
sa Cebu Promo which aimed to motivate the MICs 
and MISs—the mothers, to sell a total of 1 million worth 
of premiums. This generated 183 qualifiers and 220 
million premiums. Additionally, we launched two raffle 
promos: the Sagip, Sakay, Saya, where 142 winners were 
rewarded and 320 million premiums were generated ; 
and, in the second half of 2018, we launched Sagip, Susi 
sa Kabuhayan which was expected to generate 568 
million projected premiums.

We decided to continue our free Medicash Dengue 
bundle with our premium driver product, Sagip, seeing 
that this effective scheme resulted in high sales. We 
also identified 12 Kabuklod individuals in 12 POs as we 
piloted the product. We also extended the CARD care 
product we were initially offering to our members, to 
their dependent spouses. 

In the middle of 2018, the approval of license of 
CARD banking institutions to sell our microinsurance 
products was also achieved, enabling us to cross-sell 
our products. We also expanded our BINHI unit offices 
from 58 offices, to 100, by the second half of 2018.

As a joint initiative with CaMIA, we launched our 
Microinsurance Claims Caravan. To strengthen our 
mobile selling initiatives in previous years, we re-
launched mobile selling at nine provincial offices in 
2018. We also pilot tested payout of claims through 
CARD Sulit Padala in CALABARZON and Metro Manila, 
and incentives of MICs through the use of BDO Cash 
Card and eventually through Sulit Padala. We plan to 
continue the implementation and expansion of CARD 
Sulit padala because we recognize its benefits, and the 
convenience it provides to the clients.
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Boosting the Morale
The experience with our first travel incentive Pa-

Lechon sa Cebu for the mothers was very heartwarming. 
We witnessed how they were motivated to do more as 
they experienced the perks, particularly being able to 
travel. For some of them, the experience riding a plane 
was a first. Their efforts were also appreciated in the 
Awards Night that happened during their stay in Cebu.

We intend to continue adding incentives to the 
mothers, whom we recognize as key to increasing the 
sales of the institution. It is a challenge to successfully 
run the whole institution, so we recognize the collective 
effort of everybody especially those who are directly 
facing the clients—the account officers and the mothers.

Many manual processes involved the MICs and 
MISs handling cash, which is very risky on their part. 
We aim to incorporate technology in our products, such 
as the CARD Sulit Padala, where they do not have to 
handle cash themselves, thus decreasing the risk they 
are facing. Aside from ensuring their safety, using 
technology will ensure convenience on their part.

Better Services for All
Although it is our focus to insure members within 

the CARD network, we also aim to expand our reach 
to everybody especially the marginalized communities. 
We at CPMI and CARD MRI are strengthening our goal 
of providing a helping hand to the poor. This objective 
is still at heart. In terms of our designs and products, 
we always consider what is apt to their situation. Our 

decisions lie mainly on the needs and capabilities of all 
our clients. What do they want and need? We have this 
customer journey mapping, where we try to understand 
the situation of our clients. We identify the steps that the 
members go through to address these issues, and we 
consider their perspectives first, before designing our 
products and services.

Other companies have the tendency to be product-
centric. But we recognize that the clients are now evolving, 
and we have to consider their opinions as among the 
factors in deciding what services we should provide. 
We conducted focus-group discussions regarding this. 
As we are launching microinsurance health products, 
we always think of the appropriate pricing, design, and 
where and how to claim these products. We discuss all 
of these with the clients’ convenience in our mind.

Digitization with Personal Touch
We maybe into digital transformation, but we 

will continue to ensure the presence of human touch 
because this is our core value.

The digital innovation is already in place within 
our institution. We recognize its importance—the 
convenience it provides to the workload of our staff, 
and the processes that the clients go through. But 
we should not abandon human touch as there are 
processes where it is extremely important especially 
in building our clients’ trust. The experience with client 
interaction differs significantly because humans 
need to communicate with one another to be able to 
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establish rapport and trust towards the services they 
will be availing. CARD is known for its human touch, 
and we should not lose it.There should be a balance in 
the use of technology and the traditional face-to-face 
communication with people.

We recognize that we can use technology in some 
of our processes, so we need to identify these to lessen 
the burden of manual work. For example, in enrolment, 
we are thinking of ways to lessen the manual encoding 
processes. Together with the CARD MBA we plan of 
ways to be able to input information to our system 
automatically. We have launched CARD Sulit Padala, 
so instead of cash or check, clients can alternatively 
use this in claims. We have mobile selling projects 
where we provide tablets to the mothers so that the 
forms and return stabs could be encoded into it.

Of course, the use of technology comes with 
challenges. Seeing that the country still has so many 
areas with low Internet connectivity, some of our 
mothers in those areas can only sync the data once a 
month, or when they get to the area with connectivity. 
Another challenge would be the familiarity of the 
mothers in using both the hardware and software 
of technology. We had to train them on how to use 
the tablets. Additionally, the mindset and adaptability 
of some people towards using new and unfamiliar 
technology is also a problem. Fortunately, we at Pioneer 
fully supports the technological advancements.

Social media has also been a huge part in the 
success of our communication within the institution. 
We have a closed group page where the members can 
interact with one other about their concerns. We are 
also exploring the possibility of Facebook, Messenger 
and Viber as platforms for submitting documents 
and requirements. In the previous years, we had a 
conservative approach in using these platforms seeing 

that our market consisted of mothers who were still not 
fully immersed into these platforms. However, we have 
also identified millennials as another huge market, we 
are exploring the possibility of increasing presence in 
these new digital tools.

Stepping on the Right Track
The overwhelming increase in the sales of our 

institution allows us to have the chance to briefly pause 
and reflect: are there any concerns in the backroom 
that are not addressed, or forgotten? How do we 
improve the operations site? What manual processes 
need improvement or development?

The plan is to maintain and at the same time, 
innovate. We have already come up with schemes 
that were proven to be effective. We are continuously 
coming up with new products while expanding our 
existing products, Sagip plan, Kabuklod and CARD 
care. Additionally, we will be offering crop insurance 
products nationwide, and our microhealth products 
will be offered in March 2019 on pilot basis in 
CALABARZON. We are also addressing the need to 
provide MIC to every unit office, and we hope that in 
the coming years, every unit office will be filled with 
a designated MIC. We will continue to come up with 
different travel incentives for our mothers, to further 
strengthen their skills and empower their morale.

Every client deserves better. That is why we are 
reflecting on our services and evaluating whether 
everyone is given quality service. Reaching 5-8-40 is 
not a smooth-sailing journey, but it is possible. The 
numbers speak for themselves. The achievement of 
one is an achievement of all. The goal is attainable, 
and we are on the right track, as long as we do our 
plans with the help of digital technology. With the help 
of MBA, CaMIA and all the other institutions of CARD 
MRI, we are confident that we will reach 5-8-40. 
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• CARD MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC. 
• CARD MRI INSURANCE AGENCY, INC. 
• CENTER FOR AGRICULTURE AND RURAL    
 DEVELOPMENT (CARD), INC.
• CARD BANK, INC. 
• CARD SME BANK, INC. 
• RIZAL BANK, INC. 
• BOTICARD INC.
• CARD MRI INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY, INC. 

• CARD LEASING AND FINANCE CORPORATION
• RESPONSIBLE INVESTEMENT FOR SOLID ARITY & EMPOWERMENT  
 (RISE) FINANCING COMPANY, INC. 
• MGA LIKHA NI INAY, INC. 
• THE CARD EMPLOYEES MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE   
 (CARD EMPC)
• CARD MRI PROPERTY HOLDINGS INC. 

• ACELO B. BADELLES SR MEMORIAL HIGH SCHOOL - ABUNO HIGH   
 SCHOOL ANNEX
• ACELO B. BADELLES SR MEMORIAL HIGH SCHOOL
• AHON SA HIRAP, INC.
• ALALAY SA KAUNLARAN, INC.
• BANCO DIPOLOG, INC.
• BAYER
• BUGCAON NATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL
• BULUA
• BUNAWAN AGRICULTURAL HIGH SCHOOL
• CANTILAN BANK, INC.
• COMMUNITY SAVINGS GROUP
• DANAO NATIONAL SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL
• DR. GERARDO SABAL SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL
• DON BOSCO
• ESPERANZA SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL
• FINTQNOLOGIES
• FIRST AGRO-INDUSTRIAL RURAL BANK, INC.
• GATA DAKU MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE
• HOLY NAME
• ILIGAN ACCESS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, INC.
• ILIGAN CITY NATIONAL SCHOOL OF FISHERIES
• ILIGAN CITY NATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL
• ILIGAN CITY EAST HIGH SCHOOL - HINAPLON
• ILIGAN CITY NATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL ANNEX - TAMBACAN
• INSOL DEVELOPMENT FOUNDATION, INC.
• JAE PHILIPPINES, INC.
• JEWELHOUSE
• KAALALAY FOUNDATION, INC.
• KATIPUNAN BANK (ZAMBOANGA DEL NORTE), INC. 

• KATUWANG RESOURCE CENTER INCORPORATED
• KAMMPIL
• KIBUNGSOD SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL
• KINAWE NATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL
• KINOGUITAN NATIONAL AGRICULTURAL HIGH SCHOOL
• LAPASAN
• LIBRA FINANCE & INVESTMENT CORPORATION 
• LGU BACNOTAN
• LOOC NATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL
• MAINIT HIGH SCHOOL
• MAMBAYAAN ES SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL
• MICROVENTURES-HAPINOY
• MISAMIS ORIENTAL INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY   
 (MOIST)
• OZAMIS CITY PEOPLES MULTI PURPOSE COOPERATIVE
• PEOPLE’S ALTERNATIVE LIVELIHOOD OF SORSOGON, INC..
• PEOPLE’S MICROFINANCE COOPERATIVE
• PEOPLE’S MICROFINANCE COOPERATIVE (MEDICASH)
• PUREGOLD PRICE CLUB, INC.
• PORTULIN SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL
• POWERLANE RESOURCES, INC.
• RIMANSI
• SAN JUAN
• SAPANG DALAGA NATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL
• SERVING HUMANITY THOUGH EMPOWERMENT & DEVELOPMENT   
 (SHED), INC.
• SOLUFATMACO
• SERVICE RESOURCE INC.
• UPM MAIN
• UPM URDANETA

CARD

NON-CARD

CPMI ANNUAL REPORT 201818



Audited Financial Report 19



*SGVFS035244*

CARD PIONEER MICROINSURANCE INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31
2018 2017

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4 and 26) P=1,251,013,800 P=872,802,264
Insurance receivables - net (Notes 5 and 26) 150,636,636 44,319,460
Financial assets (Notes 6 and 26)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 37,120,669 8,258,524
Available-for-sale financial assets 20,000 20,000
Held-to-maturity investments 499,663,463 501,865,206

Interest receivable (Notes 7 and 26) 10,168,787 6,765,554
Deferred acquisition costs (Note 8) 18,496,501 20,651,671
Reinsurance assets (Notes 9 and 26) 115,195,573 22,105,458
Investment property - net (Note 10) 10 10
Property and equipment - net (Note 11) 5,630,057 4,267,196
Deferred tax assets - net (Note 21) 28,142,429 33,278,919
Other assets 35,419,594 17,507,856

TOTAL ASSETS P=2,151,507,519 P=1,531,842,118

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities (Notes 12 and 26) P=521,495,636 P=423,511,879
Insurance payables (Notes 13 and 26) 102,986,478 32,769,505
Accounts payable and other liabilities (Notes 15

and 26) 223,425,952 80,953,817
Income tax payable 70,639,192 85,320,810
Deferred reinsurance commissions (Note 8) 12,686,452 13,953
Pension liability (Note 14) 1,412,677 6,256,196
TOTAL LIABILITIES 932,646,387 628,826,160

Equity
Capital stock (Notes 16 and 25) 500,000,000 500,000,000
Contributed surplus (Notes 16 and 25) 89,019,631 89,019,631
Retained earnings 627,514,457 314,264,354
Net remeasurement gain (loss) on defined benefit

obligation (Note 14) 2,327,044 (268,027)
TOTAL EQUITY 1,218,861,132 903,015,958

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P=2,151,507,519 P=1,531,842,118

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

CPMI ANNUAL REPORT 201820



*SGVFS035244*

CARD PIONEER MICROINSURANCE INC.
STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31
2018 2017

REVENUE
Gross earned premiums on insurance contracts (Note 17) P=765,660,843 P=552,479,206
Reinsurers’ share of gross earned premiums on

insurance contracts (Note 17) (80,658,818) (34,960,309)
Net earned premiums 685,002,025 517,518,897
Investment and other income (Note 18) 67,645,471 38,408,023
Commission income (Note 8) 6,839,975 206,279
Foreign currency exchange gains (losses) - net 2,578,091 (362,211)
Total Revenue 762,065,562 555,770,988

BENEFITS, CLAIMS AND EXPENSES
Gross insurance contract benefits and claims paid (Note 12 and 19) 141,616,282 110,542,961
Reinsurers’ share of gross insurance contract benefits

and claims paid (Notes 12 and 19) (17,514,482) (17,213,760)
Gross change in insurance contract liabilities (Note 12) 17,371,363 9,921,801
Reinsurers’ share of gross change in insurance

contract liabilities (Note 12) (13,328,079) (625,586)
Net insurance benefits and claims (Note 12) 128,145,084 102,625,416
Commission expense (Note 8) 59,594,032 64,335,716
General expenses (Note 20) 135,055,563 88,427,796
Provision for impairment losses and write-offs (Notes 5 and 9) – 6,594,101
Total Benefits, Claims and Expenses 322,794,679 261,983,029

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 439,270,883 293,787,959

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 21) 126,020,780 83,445,868

NET INCOME P=313,250,103 P=210,342,091

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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CARD PIONEER MICROINSURANCE INC.
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31
2018 2017

NET INCOME P=313,250,103 P=210,342,091

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Items that will not be recycled to profit and loss

Remeasurement gain (loss) on defined benefit obligation
(Note 14) 3,707,244 (734,543)

Income tax effect (1,112,173) 114,868
2,595,071 (619,675)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P=315,845,174 P=209,722,416

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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CARD PIONEER MICROINSURANCE INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Capital Stock
(Note 16

and 25)

Contributed
Surplus
(Note 16

and 25)

Net
Remeasurement
 Gain (Loss) on

 Defined Benefit
 Obligation

(Note 14)
Retained
Earnings Total

As at January 1, 2018 P=500,000,000 P=89,019,631 (P=268,027) P=314,264,354 P=903,015,958

Net income – – – 313,250,103 313,250,103

Other comprehensive income – – 2,595,071 – 2,595,071

Total comprehensive income – – 2,595,071 313,250,103 315,845,174

As at December 31, 2018 P=500,000,000 P=89,019,631 P=2,327,044 P=627,514,457 P=1,218,861,132

As at January 1, 2017 P=500,000,000 P=89,019,631 P=351,648 P=103,922,263 P=693,293,542

Net income – – – 210,342,091 210,342,091

Other comprehensive loss – – (619,675) – (619,675)

Total comprehensive income – – (619,675) 210,342,091 209,722,416

As at December 31, 2017 P=500,000,000 P=89,019,631 (P=268,027) P=314,264,354 P=903,015,958

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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CARD PIONEER MICROINSURANCE INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended
2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax P=439,270,883 P=293,787,959
Adjustments for:

Interest income (Note 18) (65,114,286) (38,738,926)
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 11 and 20) 2,904,666 2,293,260
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) (2,578,091) 362,211
Fair value loss on financial assets through profit or loss

(Note 18) 1,137,855 330,903
Pension expense (Note 14) (1,136,275) 1,231,852

Operating income before changes in working capital 374,484,752 259,267,259
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in:

Insurance receivables (106,317,176) (7,657,643)
Deferred acquisition costs 2,155,170 2,505,738
Reinsurance assets (93,090,115) (12,603,342)
Other assets (17,911,739) (10,979,719)

Increase (decrease) in:
Insurance contract liabilities 97,983,757 107,391,733
Insurance payables 70,216,973 24,190,982
Deferred reinsurance commissions 12,672,499 (27,807)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 142,472,135 17,819,631

Net cash from operations 482,666,256 379,906,832
Income tax paid (136,678,080) (47,043,882)
Net cash from operating activities 345,988,176 332,862,950

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 63,912,796 38,811,756
Acquisitions of:

FVPL financial assets (30,000,000) –
Property and equipment (Note 11) (4,267,527) (4,112,089)
Held-to-maturity investments (Note 6) – (295,000,000)

Proceeds from maturities of held-to-maturity investments (Note 6) – 3,238,741
Net cash from investing activities 29,645,269 (257,061,592)

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH 2,578,091 (362,211)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 378,211,536 75,439,147

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 872,802,264 797,363,117

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR (Note 4) P=1,251,013,800 P=872,802,264

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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CARD PIONEER MICROINSURANCE INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

CARD Pioneer Microinsurance Inc. (the “Company”), formerly known as Pioneer Asia Insurance
Corporation, was incorporated in the Philippines and registered with the Philippine Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) on August 16, 1963. On June 26, 2012, the Company renewed its
registration with SEC to extend its corporate life for another 50 years.

The Company is engaged in the business of nonlife insurance, indemnifying others against loss,
damage or liability arising from unknown or contingent events.

The Company is 47.88% owned by Pioneer Insurance and Surety Corporation (PISC), 46.08% by
Center for Agriculture and Rural Development Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. (CARD MBA),
2.92% by Card MRI Insurance Agency Inc. (CaMIA), 1.48% by Pioneer Intercontinental Insurance
Corporation (PIIC), 1.42% by Pioneer Life Inc. (PLI) and 0.22% by Pioneer Life Holdings, Inc.
(PLHI) after the capital infusion made in 2016, in compliance with the minimum net worth
requirement of at least P=550.0 million as per Insurance Commission (IC) Circular Letter (CL)
No. 2015-02-A (see Notes 16 and 25).

The registered office address of the Company is Pioneer House, 108 Paseo de Roxas, Legaspi
Village, Makati City.

The Company’s financial statements were approved on March 12, 2019 and authorized for issuance
by the Company’s Board of Directors (BOD) on April 4, 2019.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) and available-for-sale (AFS) financial
assets that have been measured at fair value.  The financial statements are presented in Philippine
Peso (P=), which is also the Company’s functional currency.  All amounts are rounded off to the
nearest peso unit, unless otherwise indicated.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except that
that Company has adopted the following new accounting pronouncements starting January 1, 2018.

∂ Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

∂ PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
∂ Amendments to PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Measuring an Associate

or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part of Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)
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∂ Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property - Transfers of Investment Property
∂ Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
∂ PFRS 9, Financial Instruments

∂ Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts - Applying PFRS 9, Financial Instruments with
PFRS 4
The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial
instruments standard before implementing the new insurance contracts standard. The
amendments introduce two options for entities issuing insurance contracts: a temporary
exemption from applying PFRS 9 and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption is first
applied for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.  An entity may elect the
overlay approach when it first applies PFRS 9 and apply that approach retrospectively to
financial assets designated on transition to PFRS 9. The entity restates comparative information
reflecting the overlay approach if, and only if, the entity restates comparative information when
applying PFRS 9.

The Company applies the temporary exemption from PFRS 9 as permitted by the Amendments
to PFRS 4, issued in September 2016.  The temporary exemption permits the Company to
continue applying PAS 39 rather than PFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before
January 1, 2022.  The Company concluded that it qualified for the temporary exemption from
PFRS 9 because its activities are predominantly connected with insurance.  As at
December 31, 2015, the Company’s gross liabilities arising from contracts within the scope of
PFRS 4 represented 96% of the total carrying amount of all its liabilities.  Since
December 31, 2015, there has been no change in the activities of the Company that requires
reassessment of the use of the temporary exemption.

Fair value disclosures
The table below presents an analysis of fair value of classes of financial assets as of
December 31, 2018, as well as the corresponding change in fair value for the year ended
December 31, 2018. The amortized cost of cash and cash equivalents, insurance receivables and
interest receivables has been used as a reasonable basis as a reasonable approximation to fair
value.

The financial assets are divided into two categories:
∂ Assets for which their contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and

interest (SPPI), excluding any financial assets that are held for trading or that are managed
and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis; and

∂ All financial assets other than those specified in SPPI above (i.e., those for which contractual
cash flows do not represent SPPI, assets that are held for trading and assets that are managed
and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis).

SPPI Financial assets Other Financial assets

Financial asset Fair value
Fair value

Fair value
Fair value

change change
Cash and cash equivalents P=1,251,013,800 P=‒ P=‒ P=‒
Insurance receivables 150,636,636 ‒ ‒ ‒
Financial assets at FVPL ‒ ‒ 38,258,524 (1,137,855)
AFS financial assets ‒ ‒ 20,000 ‒
Held-to-maturity investments 499,663,463 ‒ ‒ ‒
Interest receivable 10,168,787 ‒ ‒ ‒

CPMI ANNUAL REPORT 201826



- 3 -

*SGVFS035244*

Credit risk disclosures
The following table shows the carrying amount of the SPPI assets included in the table in the
section of fair value of financial instruments by credit risk rating grades reported to key
management personnel.  The carrying amount is measured in accordance with PAS 39.  For
assets measured at amortized cost, the carrying amount shown is before impairment allowance

SPPI Financial asset

Non-investment

Unrated Total
Investment grade:

grade Satisfactory
Cash and cash equivalents P=1,250,737,800 P=‒ P=276,000 P=1,251,013,800
Insurance receivables 93,147,389 57,721,858 ‒ 150,869,247
Held-to-maturity investments 499,663,463 ‒ ‒ 499,663,463
Interest receivable 10,168,787 ‒ ‒ 10,168,787

The following table provides information on the fair value and carrying amount under PAS 39
for those SPPI assets that do not have low credit risk as determined by the Company.  The
carrying amounts are measured in accordance with PAS 39.  For assets measured at amortized
cost, the carrying amount shown is before any allowance for impairment loss

SPPI Financial asset Carrying amount Fair value
Cash and cash equivalents P=1,251,013,800 P=1,251,013,800
Insurance receivables 150,869,247 150,869,247

Standards Issued but Not yet Effective
The Company will adopt, where applicable, the following new standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations when these become effective. Unless otherwise stated, the adoption of
these new standards, amendments thereto and interpretation is not expected to have significant
impact on the Company’s financial statements. Additional disclosures will be provided when these
standards and amendments are adopted.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2019

∂ Amendments to PFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
∂ Amendments to PAS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
∂ Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

∂ PFRS 16, Leases
PFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar
to the accounting for finance leases under PAS 17, Leases.  The standard includes two
recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and
short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less).  At the commencement date
of a lease, a lessee will recognize a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and
an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-
use asset).  Lessees will be required to separately recognize the interest expense on the lease
liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain
events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine those payments).  The lessee will generally
recognize the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-
use asset.
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Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under
PAS 17.  Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in
PAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

PFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under
PAS 17.

A lessee can choose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach.  The standard’s transition provisions permit certain reliefs.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting PFRS 16.

∂ Amendments to PAS 19, Employee Benefits- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
The amendments to PAS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement occurs during a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during the annual reporting period, an entity is
required to:

• Determine current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net defined
benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after
that event

• Determine net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement using: the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered
under the plan and the plan assets after that event; and the discount rate used to remeasure
that net defined benefit liability (asset).

The amendments also clarify that an entity first determines any past service cost, or a gain or loss
on settlement, without considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This amount is recognized in
profit or loss. An entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement. Any change in that effect, excluding amounts included in the net
interest, is recognized in other comprehensive income.

The amendments apply to plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements occurring on or after
the beginning of the first annual reporting period that begins on or after January 1, 2019, with
early application permitted. These amendments will apply only to any future plan amendments,
curtailments, or settlements of the Company.

∂ Annual Improvements to PFRS 2015-2017 Cycle
• Amendments to PFRS 3, Business Combinations, and PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements -

Previously Held Interest in a Joint Operation
• Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes - Income Tax Consequences of Payments on

Financial Instruments Classified as Equity
• Amendments to PAS 23, Borrowing Costs - Borrowing Costs Eligible for Capitalization

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2020

∂ Amendments to PFRS 3 - Definition of a Business
∂ Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, and PAS 8, Accounting Policies,

Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - Definition of Material

CPMI ANNUAL REPORT 201828



- 5 -

*SGVFS035244*

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2021

∂ PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts
PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace
PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts. This new standard on insurance contracts applies to all types of
insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type
of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with
discretionary participation features. A few scope exceptions will apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that
is more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4, which are
largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a
comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core
of PFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:
• A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee

approach)
• A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021, with
comparative figures required.  Early application is permitted.

Deferred effectivity

∂ Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Translation of Foreign Currency-Denominated Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate ruling at the
date of the transaction.  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated using the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date.  Nonmonetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction and are not subsequently restated.  All foreign
exchange differences are taken to the statement of income.

Product Classification
Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant
insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if
a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders.  As a
general guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing
benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur.  Insurance contracts can also
transfer financial risk.

The significance of insurance risk is dependent on both the probability of an insured event and the
magnitude of its potential effect.  As a general guideline, the Company defines significant insurance
risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event that are at least
10% more than the benefits payable if the insured event did not occur.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the
remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all
rights and obligations are extinguished or have expired.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks.  Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less
from dates of placement and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and are free of
any encumbrances.

Insurance Receivables
Insurance receivables are recognized on policy inception dates and measured on initial recognition at
the fair value of the consideration.  Subsequent to initial recognition, insurance receivables are
measured at amortized cost.  The carrying value of insurance receivables is reviewed for impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable, with
impairment loss recorded in the statement of income.  Insurance receivables are derecognized
following the derecognition criteria of financial assets.

Financial Instruments
Date of recognition
Financial instruments are recognized on the date when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.  Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are
recognized on the trade date.

Initial recognition
Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value.  Except for financial instruments at FVPL,
the initial measurement of financial assets includes transaction costs.  The Company classifies its
financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at FVPL, AFS financial assets, held-to-
maturity (HTM) investments and loans and receivables.  The Company classifies its financial
liabilities into other financial liabilities.  The classification depends on the purpose for which the
investments were acquired and whether they are quoted in an active market.  Management
determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting date.

Determination of fair value
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

∂ In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
∂ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the end of the reporting period is
based on their quoted market price or dealer price quotations, without any deduction for transaction
costs.  When current market prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction provides
evidence of the current fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic
circumstances since the time of the transaction.
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For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined by using
appropriate valuation techniques.  Valuation techniques include net present value techniques,
comparison to similar instruments for which observable current market prices exist, option pricing
models, and other relevant valuation models.  Any difference noted between the fair value and the
transaction price is recognized in the statement of income, unless it qualifies for recognition as some
type of asset or liability.

Fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
assets by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair

value are observable in the market, either directly or indirectly;
Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that

are not based on observable market data.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company classifies all of its quoted financial assets under
Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.  There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurement.

Day 1 difference
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value from other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ profit or loss) in the statement of income
unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset.  In cases where an unobservable data is
used, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in the
statement of income when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized.
For each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day 1’
profit or loss amount.

Financial assets or financial liabilities at FVPL
This category consists of financial assets or financial liabilities that are held-for-trading or designated
by management as at FVPL on initial recognition.

Financial assets or financial liabilities designated by management as at FVPL are designated as such
on initial recognition when any of the following criteria are met:

∂ The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on
a different basis;

∂ The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which
are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy; or

∂ The financial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative would
not be separated.
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Financial assets or financial liabilities are initially recorded at fair value.  Subsequent to initial
recognition, these instruments are re-measured at fair value.  Fair value adjustments and realized
gains and losses are recognized as “Fair value gains (losses) on financial assets at FVPL” under
“Investment income” in the statement of income.

AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets are those which are designated as such or do not qualify to be classified as
financial assets at FVPL, HTM investments or loans and receivables.  They are purchased and held
indefinitely, and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.  The
effective yield component of AFS debt securities, as well as the impact of restatement on foreign
currency-denominated AFS debt securities, is reported in earnings.  Interest earned on holding AFS
financial assets is reported as interest income using the effective interest method.  Dividends earned
on holding AFS financial assets are recognized in the statement of income when the right to receive
payment has been established.  The gains and losses arising from the fair valuation of AFS financial
assets are reported as “Fair value gains (losses) on available-for-sale financial assets” in the
statement of comprehensive income.  The losses arising from impairment of such financial assets are
reported as “Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets” in the statement of income.
When a security is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized as other
comprehensive income is reported “Investment and other income” in the statement of income.

When the fair value of AFS financial assets cannot be measured reliably because of lack of reliable
estimates of future cash flows and discount rates necessary to calculate the fair value of unquoted
equity instruments, these investments are carried at cost, less any allowance for impairment loss.

HTM investments
HTM investments are quoted nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities for which the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
These investments are initially recognized at cost, including all transaction costs, being the fair value
of the consideration paid for the acquisition of investment.  Where the Company sells other than an
insignificant amount of HTM investments, the entire category would be tainted and reclassified as
AFS financial assets.  After initial measurement, these investments are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment in value.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (EIR).  The effective interest amortization is
included in “Interest income” under “Investment and other income” in the statement of income.
Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of income when the HTM investments are
derecognized and impaired, as well as through the amortization process.  The effects of restatement
on foreign currency denominated HTM investments are recognized in the statement of income.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that are not quoted in an active market.  They are not entered into with the intention of immediate or
short-term resale and are not classified as financial assets held-for-trading, nor designated as AFS or
at FVPL.
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After initial measurement, the loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.  Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate.  The amortization is included under “Investment income” in the statement of
income.  The losses arising from impairment of such loans and receivables are recognized as
“Provision for impairment losses” in the statement of income.

This accounting policy relates to the statement of financial position captions “Cash and cash
equivalents,” “Insurance receivables” and “Interest receivable”.

Other financial liabilities
Issued financial liabilities or their components, which are not designated as financial liabilities at
FVPL are classified as other financial liabilities, where the substance of the contractual arrangement
results in the Company having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the
holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method.  Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.  Any
effects of restatement of foreign currency-denominated liabilities are recognized in the statement of
income.

This accounting policy relates to the statement of financial position captions: “Insurance payables”
and “Accrued expenses and other liabilities” that meet the above definition (other than liabilities
covered by other accounting standards, such as pension liability and income tax payable).

Classification of Financial Instruments Between Debt and Equity
A financial instrument is classified as debt, if it has a contractual obligation to:

∂ deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity, or
∂ exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are

potentially unfavourable to the Company.

If the Company does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial
asset to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial liability.

Financial instruments are classified as liability or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual agreement.  Interests, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or a
component that is a financial liability, are reported as expense or income.  Distributions to holders of
financial instrument classified as equity are charged directly to equity net of any related income tax
benefits.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired.

Audited Financial Report 33



- 10 -

*SGVFS035244*

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.  Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower, or a group of
borrowers, is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization,
and where observable data indicate that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Insurance receivables
A provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Company will not be able to
collect all of the amounts due under the terms agreed with the counterparty.  The carrying amount of
the receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance account.

AFS financial assets carried at fair value
For equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, impairment indicators would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost or where other
objective evidence of impairment exists.  Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss
(measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in the statement of income) is removed
from the statement of comprehensive income and recognized in the statement of income.  Impairment
losses on equity investments are not reversed through profit or loss.  Increases in fair value after
impairment are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortized cost.  Future interest income is based on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring impairment loss and is recorded as part of “Investment income” in the statement of
income.  If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increased and the increase can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the statement
of income, the impairment loss is reversed through the statement of income.

AFS financial assets carried at cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unquoted equity
instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a
derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instrument,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset.

Loans and receivables
For loans and receivables carried at amortized cost, the Company first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.  If the Company determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses for impairment.  Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be recognized, are not included in a
collective assessment for impairment.
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If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted using the original effective interest rate.  The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account.  The amount of the loss is recognized
as “Provision for impairment losses” in the statement of income.

Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount based on the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.  Loans
together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral, if any, has been realized or has been transferred to the Company.  If in a
subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account.  If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is recognized in the statement of income.  Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized in the statement of income, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not
exceed what would have been its amortized cost at the reversal date had their been no impairment.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial asset
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized when

∂ the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
∂ the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation

to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; or
∂ the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
‘pass-through’ arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement in the asset.  Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of the consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligations under the liabilities has expired, or is
discharged or cancelled.  Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in
the statement of income.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
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simultaneously.  The Company assesses that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if the right
is not contingent on a future event and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event
of default, and event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and all of the counterparties.

Reinsurance
The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all of its businesses.
Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies.  Amounts recoverable from
reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision or settled
claims associated with the reinsurer’s policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance
contract.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently when an
indication of impairment arises during the reporting year.  Impairment occurs when there is objective
evidence as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance asset that the
Company may not receive all outstanding amounts due under the terms of the contract and the event
has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the Company will receive from the reinsurers.
The impairment loss is recorded in the statement of income.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders.

The Company also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business.  Premiums and claims
on assumed reinsurance are recognized as income and expenses in the same manner as they would be
if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account the product classification of
the reinsured business.  Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies,
which are included under “Insurance payables” in the statement of financial position.  Amounts
payable are estimated in a manner consistent with the associated reinsurance contract.

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished or
expired, or when the contract is transferred to another party.

Reinsurance contracts that do not transfer significant insurance risk are accounted for directly
through the statement of financial position.  These are deposit assets or financial liabilities that are
recognized based on the consideration paid or received less any explicit identified premiums or fees
to be retained by the reinsured.  Investment income on these contracts is accounted for using the
effective interest method.

Deferred Acquisition Costs (DAC) and Deferred Reinsurance Commissions (DRC)
Costs that vary with and are primarily related to the acquisition of new and renewal insurance
contracts are deferred and charged against income using the 24th method.  The unamortized
acquisition costs are shown in the assets section of the statement of financial position as “Deferred
acquisition costs.”  Reinsurance commissions are deferred and shown in the liabilities section of the
statement of financial position as “Deferred reinsurance commissions,” subject to the same
amortization method as the related acquisition costs.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.
The initial cost of the property and equipment comprises its purchase price, nonrefundable taxes and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.
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Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets as
follows:

Years
Computer and electronic equipment 3
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 5
Transportation Equipment 5

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the term of the lease or estimated useful life of
two (2) years, whichever is shorter.

The estimated useful life and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
method and period of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from
items of property and equipment.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.  Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the statement of income in the year the item is
derecognized.

Investment Property
Investment properties are properties that are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes or
sale in the ordinary course of business.

Investment properties are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of 10 years.
The estimated useful life and the depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
period and method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from
items of investment properties.

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from its
disposal.  Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized
in the statement of income in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to investment property when there is a change in use, evidenced by ending of
owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending of construction or
development.  Transfers are made from investment property when, and only when, there is a change
in use, evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of development with a
view to sale.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company classifies its investment property under Level 3 of
fair value hierarchy.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired.  If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.  An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
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independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.  Where the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.  In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.  Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is
any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased.  If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.  A previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.  If such is
the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount.  That increased
amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and
amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.  Such reversal is
recognized in profit or loss unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, the reversal
is treated as a revaluation increase.  After such reversal, the depreciation and amortization charge is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Insurance Contract Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities are recognized when contracts are entered into and premiums are
charged.

Claims provision
Outstanding claims are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at
the statement of financial position date, whether reported or not, together with related claims
handling costs and reduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries.  Delays can be
experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims; therefore, the ultimate cost
of which cannot be known with certainty at the reporting date.  The liability is not discounted for the
time value of money and includes provision for claims reported and IBNR claims.  The provision for
claims liability is based on the independent adjusters’ report on the individual claims.  The IBNR was
estimated using Chain Ladder method based on both claims paid and claims incurred, Bornhuetter-
Ferguson method based on both claims paid and claims incurred, and Expected Loss Ratio.  No
provision for equalization or catastrophic reserves is recognized.  The liabilities are derecognized
when the contract is discharged, cancelled or has expired.

Provision for unearned premiums
The proportion of written premiums, gross of commissions payable to intermediaries, attributable to
subsequent periods or to risks that have not yet expired is deferred as provision for unearned
premiums.  The change in the provision for unearned premiums is taken to the statement of income
in the order that revenue is recognized over the period of risk.  Further provisions are made to cover
claims under unexpired insurance contracts which may exceed the unearned premiums and the
premiums due in respect of these contracts.

Liability adequacy test
At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are performed, to ensure the adequacy of insurance
contract liabilities, net of related DAC.  In performing the test, current best estimates of future
cash flows, claims handling and policy administration expenses are used.  Changes in expected
claims that have occurred, but which have not been settled, are reflected by adjusting the liability for
claims and future benefits.  Any inadequacy is immediately charged to the statement of income by
establishing an unexpired risk provision for losses arising from the liability adequacy tests.
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Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.  The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Premiums
Premiums from short-duration insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the period of the
contracts using the 24th method.  The portion of the premiums written that relate to the unexpired
periods of the policies at reporting date are accounted for as provision for unearned premiums and is
presented under “Insurance contract liabilities” in the liabilities section of the statement of financial
position. The net changes in this account between reporting dates is charged against or credited to
income for the year.

Commission income
Commissions earned from short-duration insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the
period of the contracts using the 24th method.

Investment income
∂ Interest income is recognized in the statement of income as it accrues, taking into account the

effective yield of the asset.  Interest income includes the amortization of any discount or
premium using the effective interest rate method.

∂ Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established.

Other income
All other income items are recognized in the statement of income when earned.

Expenses Recognition
Expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of outflows or
decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decrease in equity, other than those relating
to distributions to equity participants.

Benefits and claims
Gross benefits and claims consist of benefits and claims paid to policyholders and changes in the
gross valuation of insurance contract liabilities, except for gross changes in the provision for
unearned premiums which are included in net earned premiums.  It further includes internal and
external claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims.
Insurance claims are recorded on the basis of notifications received.

Commission expense
Commissions incurred from short-duration insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the
period of the contracts using the 24th method.  The portion of the commissions that relates to the
unexpired periods of the policies at reporting date is accounted for as “Deferred Acquisition Costs”
and presented in the asset section of the statement of financial position.

General expenses
Expenses are recognized in the statement of income in the period these are incurred.

Interest expense
Interest expense is recognized in the statement of income as incurred.
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Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.  A
reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

a. There is a change in contractual term, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;
b. A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or extension

was initially included in the lease term;
c. There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset; or
d. There is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios a, c or d above, and at the date of
renewal or extension period for scenario b.

Company as a lessee
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases.  Operating lease payments are recognized as expense in the statement
of income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  Minimum lease payments are recognized on a
straight-line basis while the variable rent is recognized as an expense based on the terms of the lease
contract.

Equity
Capital stock
Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued.

Contributed surplus
Contributed surplus represents contribution of shareholders to the Company in compliance with the
requirement of the IC.

Retained earnings (deficit)
Retained earnings (deficit) represent the cumulative balance of net income or loss of the Company
and other restatements, net of any dividend distribution.

Taxes
Income tax for the year consists of current and deferred tax.  Income tax is determined in accordance
with Philippine tax laws.  Income tax is recognized in the statement of income, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income.  Tax on these
items is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.  The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute this amount are those that have been enacted or substantially enacted as of the reporting
date.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences, with
certain exceptions, at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, with certain exceptions.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused
tax credits from excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income
tax and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and carryforward
of unused tax credits from excess MCIT and NOLCO can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax assets to be utilized.  Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognized directly in the statement of comprehensive
income are likewise recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted as of end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Movements in the deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from changes in the rates are charged
against or credited to operations for the period.

Value-Added Tax (VAT)
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax except:

∂ where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax
authority, in which case the tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and,

∂ receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from the tax authority is included as part of other assets in the
Company’s statement of financial position.

Pension Cost
The Company has an unfunded, non-contributory retirement plan, covering its regular employees.
Retirement cost is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. This
method reflects service rendered by employees to the date of valuation and incorporates assumptions
concerning employees’ projected salaries.

Defined retirement costs comprise the following:

(a) Service costs;
(b) Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset;
(c) Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset.
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Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routine settlements are recognized as expense in profit and loss. Past service costs are recognized
when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by
independent qualified actuaries.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying
the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Net interest
on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in profit and loss.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
immediately in other comprehensive income (OCI) under “Net remeasurement on loss on defined
benefit obligation” in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not recycled to profit and
loss in subsequent periods.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements.  They are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.  A contingent asset is
not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Events After the Reporting Period
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s position at end of the
reporting period (adjusting event) are reflected in the financial statements.  Post year-end events that
are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when material to the financial statements.

3. Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the Company to make
judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.  Future events may occur which will cause the
judgments and assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change.  The effects of any change in
judgments and estimates are reflected in the financial statements as they become reasonably
determinable.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be determinable under the
circumstances.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimates and assumptions, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:
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Product classification
The significance of insurance risk is dependent on both the probability of an insured event and the
magnitude of its potential effect.  As a general guideline, the Company defines significant insurance
risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event that are at least
10% more than the benefits payable if the insured event did not occur.

The Company has determined that the insurance policies it issues have significant insurance risks and
therefore meet the definition of insurance contracts and should be accounted for as such.

Operating Lease - Company as lessee
The Company has entered into commercial property lease with Pioneer Insurance & Surety
Corporation.  The Company has determined that the lessor retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the leased properties; thus, accounts for them as operating lease.

Estimates and Assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
statement of financial position date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Valuation of insurance contract liabilities
Estimates have to be made at the reporting date for the expected ultimate cost of both claims reported
and claims IBNR.  It takes a significant period of time before the ultimate claim cost can be
established with certainty and for some type of policies, IBNR claims form the majority of the claims
provision.

The primary technique adopted by management in estimating the cost of notified and IBNR claims is
that of using past claims settlement trends to predict future claims settlement trends.  The amount of
IBNR claims is calculated using Chain Ladder method based on both claims paid and claims
incurred, Bornhuetter-Ferguson method based on both claims paid and claims incurred, and Expected
Loss Ratio. At each reporting date, prior year claims estimates are assessed for adequacy and any
changes made are charged to provision for claims reported and claims IBNR.  Insurance claims
liabilities are not discounted for the time value of money.

The carrying value of claims payable and IBNR included in the insurance contract liabilities
amounted to and P=126,138,690 and P=108,767,327 as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively
(see Note 12).

Impairment of loans and receivables
The Company maintains an allowance for impairment losses at a level considered adequate to
provide for potential uncollectible receivables.  The level of this allowance is evaluated by
management on the basis of factors that affect the collectability of the accounts.  These factors
include, but are not limited to, the length of the Company’s relationship with the debtor, the debtor’s
payment behavior and known market forces.  The Company reviews the age and status of
receivables, and identifies accounts that are to be provided with allowances on a continuous basis.

The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the Company made
different judgments or utilized different estimates.  An increase in allowance for impairment losses
would increase recorded expenses and decrease the assets’ carrying values.
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As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the carrying value of insurance receivables amounted to
P=150,636,636 and P=44,319,460, respectively (see Note 5).  The Company’s allowance for
impairment losses on insurance receivables amounted to P=232,611 as of December 31, 2018 and
2017 (see Note 5).

Allowance for impairment losses on reinsurance assets amounted to P=49,224 as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017 (see Note 9).

Estimation of useful lives of property and equipment
The Company reviews annually the estimated useful lives of property and equipment based on the
period over which the assets are expected to be available for use.  It is possible that future results of
operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates. A reduction in the estimated
useful lives of these properties would increase recorded depreciation and amortization expense and
decrease the related asset accounts.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the carrying amount of property and equipment were P=5,630,057
and P=4,267,196, respectively (see Note 11).

Pension and other employee benefits
The cost of defined benefit plan and the present value of the pension obligation are determined using
actuarial valuation. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.

While the Company believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant
differences in the actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect
the pension obligation. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the market yields on Philippine
government bonds with terms consistent with the expected term of the defined benefit obligation as
of reporting date. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables in the Philippines.
Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Refer to Note 14 for the related details.

Recognition of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all future tax deductibles to the extent that it is probable that
the taxable income will be available against which these temporary differences can be utilized.
Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable income together with future
tax planning strategies.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets amounted to P=28,915,856 and P=33,278,919 as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 21).

Contingencies
The Company is currently involved in various legal proceedings.  The estimate of the probable costs
for the resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with the legal counsels and
based upon an analysis of potential results.  The Company does not believe these proceedings will
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position.
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4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

2018 2017
Cash on hand P=276,000 P=148,500
Cash in banks 36,077,808 53,899,015
Cash equivalents 1,214,659,992 818,754,749

P=1,251,013,800 P=872,802,264

Cash in banks earns interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates.  Cash equivalents are made for
varying periods of up to three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Company, and earned interest at the respective short-term deposit rates ranging from 1.75% to 7.00%
in 2018 and 1.75% to 2.75% in 2017.

Interest income from cash and cash equivalents amounted to P=41,589,414 in 2018 and P=19,086,502
in 2017 (see Note 18).

5. Insurance Receivables - net

This account consists of:

2018 2017
Premiums receivable (Note 23) P=68,287,788 P=16,600,050
Due from ceding companies (Note 23) 66,308,359 11,518,938
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses 13,245,593 13,780,682
Funds held by ceding companies 3,027,507 2,652,401

150,869,247 44,552,071
Less allowance for impairment losses 232,611 232,611

P=150,636,636 P=44,319,460

Premiums receivable represent premiums on written policies that are collectible within ninety (90)
days (see Note 26).

Due from ceding companies pertains to premiums collectible resulting from treaty and facultative
acceptances from ceding companies.

Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses pertains to the Company’s receivables from the reinsurers for
their share on the losses paid by the Company.  These amounts are due and demandable.

Funds held by ceding companies represent portion of the premium withheld by ceding companies in
accordance with reinsurance contracts.  These amounts are generally collected within one year after
the reporting date.
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The aging analyses of insurance receivables follow:

2018
 30 to

  60 days
61 to

120 days
121 to

180 days
More than

180 days Impaired Total
Premiums receivable P=54,707,860 P=1,357,182 P=9,827,408 P=2,395,338 P=– P=68,287,788
Due from ceding companies 544,305 12,692,313 12,236,067 40,835,674 – 66,308,359
Reinsurance recoverable on paid

losses 12,601,061 – – 411,921 232,611 13,245,593
Funds held by ceding companies 54,393 241,273 – 2,731,841 – 3,027,507

P=67,907,619 P=14,290,768 P=22,063,475 P=46,374,774 P=232,611 P=150,869,247

2017
30 to

60 days
61 to

120 days
121 to

180 days
More than

180 days Impaired Total
Premiums receivable P=6,606,568 P=916,955 P=2,898,562 P=6,177,965 P=– P=16,600,050
Due from ceding companies 5,367,200 2,581,878 2,173,573 1,396,287 – 11,518,938
Reinsurance recoverable on paid

losses 13,183,774 – – 364,297 232,611 13,780,682
Funds held by ceding companies 873,134 74,360 8,440 1,696,467 – 2,652,401

P=26,030,676 P=3,573,193 P=5,080,575 P=9,635,016 P=232,611 P=44,552,071

 The rollforward analysis of allowance for impairment losses on insurance receivables follow:

2018

Due from Ceding
 Companies

Funds Held by
Ceding

Companies

Reinsurance
 Recoverable on

Paid Losses  Total
At January 1/ December 31 P=– P=– P=232,611 P=232,611

2017

Due from Ceding
Companies

Funds Held by
Ceding

Companies

Reinsurance
 Recoverable on

Paid Losses Total
At January 1 P=– P=– P=232,611 P=232,611
Addition – 6,594,101 – 6,594,101
Write-off – (6,594,101) – (6,594,101)
At December 31 P=– P=– P=232,611 P=232,611

6. Financial Assets

The Company’s financial assets are summarized by measurement categories as follows:

2018 2017
HTM investments P=499,663,463 P=501,865,206
FVPL financial assets 37,120,669 8,258,524
AFS financial assets 20,000 20,000

P=536,804,132 P=510,143,730

The assets included in each of the categories above are detailed below:

HTM investments
HTM investments represent debt instruments issued by the Philippine government amounting to
P=499,663,463 and P=501,865,206 as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The term of the
issues ranged from 3 to 20 years and earns coupon rates of 3.38% to 8.00%.
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Government debt securities are deposited with the IC in accordance with the provisions of the
Insurance Code (the Code) for the benefit and security of policyholders and creditors of the
Company.  The face value of government debt securities deposited with the IC amounted to
P=475,200,000 as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Interest income from HTM
investments amounted to P=22,594,461 in 2018 and P=19,253,886 in 2017 (see Note 18).

FVPL financial asset
The Company’s financial assets designated at FVPL represents corporate debt instruments issued
locally. Interest income from financial assets at FVPL amounted to P=794,173 in 2018 and P=382,209
in 2017 (see Note 18).

AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets represent unquoted equity instruments stated at cost of P=20,000 as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017. No dividends were received from investment in equity securities under
AFS financial assets in 2018 and 2017.

The carrying values of financial assets have been determined as follows:

2018
FVPL Financial

Assets
AFS Financial

Assets
HTM

Investments Total
At January 1 P=8,258,524 P=20,000 P=501,865,206 P=510,143,730
Acquisitions 30,000,000 – – 30,000,000
Fair value loss (Note 18) (1,137,855) – – (1,137,855)
Premium amortization – – (2,201,743) (2,201,743)
At December 31 P=37,120,669 P=20,000 P=499,663,463 P=536,804,132

2017
FVPL Financial

Assets
AFS Financial

Assets
HTM

Investments Total
At January 1 P=8,589,427 P=20,000 P=212,200,222 P=220,809,649
Acquisitions – – 295,000,000 295,000,000
Maturities – – (3,238,741) (3,238,741)
Fair value loss (Note 18) (330,903) – – (330,903)
Premium amortization – – (2,096,275) (2,096,275)
At December 31 P=8,258,524 P=20,000 P=501,865,206 P=510,143,730

7. Interest Receivable

This account consists of interest receivable on:

2018 2017
HTM investments P=6,686,203 P=6,014,564
Cash and cash equivalents 2,947,191 698,476
FVPL financial assets 535,393 52,514

P=10,168,787 P=6,765,554
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8. Deferred Acquisition Costs and Deferred Reinsurance Commissions

The rollforward analysis of deferred acquisition costs follows:

2018 2017
At January 1 P=20,651,671 P=23,157,409
Cost deferred during the year 57,438,862 61,829,978
Cost incurred during the year (59,594,032) (64,335,716)
At December 31 P=18,496,501 P=20,651,671

Deferred  acquisition  costs  refer  to  the  portion  of  commission  expense  that  relate  to  the  unexpired
periods of the policies as of the reporting date using the 24th method.

The rollforward analysis of deferred reinsurance commissions follows:

2018 2017
At January 1 P=13,953 P=41,760
Income deferred during the year 19,512,474 178,472
Income earned during the year (6,839,975) (206,279)
At December 31 P=12,686,452 P=13,953

Deferred reinsurance commissions refer to the portion of commission income that relate to the
unexpired periods of the policies as of the reporting date using the 24th method.

9. Reinsurance Assets

This account consists of:

2018 2017
Deferred reinsurance premiums (Note 12) P=101,236,986 P=21,474,950
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses

(Note 12) 14,007,811 679,732
115,244,797 22,154,682

Less allowance for impairment losses 49,224 49,224
P=115,195,573 P=22,105,458

Deferred reinsurance premiums are portions of the ceded premiums that relate to the unexpired
periods of the policies as of the reporting date using the 24th method.

Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses is the reinsurer’s share on the losses or claims that are yet
to be settled by the Company.

10. Investment Property

The Company’s investment property pertains to a condominium unit located at the 7th floor of A&T
Building, Binondo, Manila with an acquisition cost of P=11,966,201.
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The appraised value of the investment property as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to
P=17,919,000 and P=17,373,000, respectively. The fair value of the property is based on valuations
performed by Cuervo Appraisers, Inc. (CAI), an accredited independent valuer. CAI is a specialist in
valuing these types of investment properties. There was no change in the valuation technique used.

The following table shows the valuation technique used and key inputs to valuation on the
investment property:

Significant Range (Weighted Average)
Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs 2018 2017
Sales Comparison

Approach
Asking price per square
meter

P=33,861 - P=40,375 P=39,772 - P=40,226

Location -5.00% to -10.00% -5.00% to 0.00%
Size -5.00% to -10.00% -10.00%
Time Element 0% 0.00% to +3.00%

The appraised value of the condominium unit was determined using sales comparison approach.
This is a comparative approach that considers the sales of similar or substitute properties and related
market data and establishes a value estimate by processes involving comparison.  Listings and
offerings may also be considered.  The properties used as basis for comparison are situated within the
subject building or in other comparable condominium buildings nearby.  Comparison would be
premised on the factors such as floor level location, interior finishes, parking slot allocation and
facilities offered and the time element.

The Company determined that condominium units at the measurement date are valued in terms of its
highest and best use which is categorized under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. For strategic
reasons, the properties are not being used in this manner.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the property has not been pledged as collateral or security for
any of the Company’s liabilities and the Company has no restrictions on the realizability of its
condominium unit and no contractual obligation to purchase, construct or develop such property or
for repairs, maintenance and enhancements. The property is fully depreciated and currently not in
use.

11. Property and Equipment - net

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the movements of this account follow:

2018
Computer

and Electronic
Equipment

Transportation
Equipment

Furniture,
Fixtures and

Equipment
Leasehold

Improvements Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P=8,860,523 P=– P=26,499 P=876,979 P=9,764,001
Additions 1,655,149 1,739,285 – 873,093 4,267,527
Balance at end of year 10,515,672 1,739,285 26,499 1,750,072 14,031,528
Accumulated Depreciation and

Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 5,340,518 – 15,080 141,207 5,496,805
Depreciation and amortization

(Note 20) 1,840,588 318,869 5,300 739,909 2,904,666
Balance at end of year 7,181,106 318,869 20,380 881,116 8,401,471
Net Book Value P=3,334,566 P=1,420,416 P=6,119 P=868,956 P=5,630,057
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2017
Computer

and Electronic
Equipment

Transportation
Equipment

Furniture,
Fixtures and

Equipment
Leasehold

Improvements Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P=5,625,413 P=– P=26,499 P=– P=5,651,912
Additions 3,235,110 – – 876,979 4,112,089
Balance at end of year 8,860,523 – 26,499 876,979 9,764,001
Accumulated Depreciation and

Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 3,193,765 – 9,780 – 3,203,545
Depreciation and amortization

(Note 20) 2,146,753 – 5,300 141,207 2,293,260
Balance at end of year 5,340,518 – 15,080 141,207 5,496,805
Net Book Value P=3,520,005 P=– P=11,419 P=735,772 P=4,267,196

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, fully depreciated property and equipment that are still in use by
the Company amounted to P=4,090,923 and P=3,830,334, respectively.

12. Insurance Contract Liabilities and Reinsurance Assets

The analysis of insurance contract liabilities, net of reinsurers’ share of liabilities follows:

2018      2017

Insurance
Contract

Liabilities

Reinsurers’
Share of

Liabilities
(Note 9) Net

Insurance
Contract

Liabilities

Reinsurers’
Share of

Liabilities
(Note 9) Net

Provision for claims reported P=28,707,793 P=7,078,996 P=21,628,797 P=12,544,683 P=49,224 P=12,495,459
Provision for claims IBNR 97,430,897 6,928,815 90,502,082 96,222,644 630,508 95,592,136
Provision for unearned

premiums 395,356,946 101,236,986 294,119,960 314,744,552 21,474,950 293,269,602
P=521,495,636 P=115,244,797 P=406,250,839 P=423,511,879 P=22,154,682 P=401,357,197

The analysis of total provision for claims reported follows:
2018         2017

Insurance
Contract
Liabilities

Reinsurers’
Share of

Liabilities
(Note 9) Net

Insurance Contract
Liabilities

Reinsurers’
Share of

Liabilities
(Note 9) Net

At January 1 P=108,767,327 P=679,732 P=108,087,595 P=98,845,526 P=54,146 P=98,791,380
Claims incurred during the

year 157,779,392 24,544,254 133,235,138 86,470,206 17,213,760 69,256,446
Claims paid during the year

(Note 19) (141,616,282) (17,514,482) (124,101,800) (110,542,961) (17,213,760) (93,329,201)
Increase (decrease) in claims

IBNR 1,208,253 6,298,307 (5,090,054) 33,994,556 625,586 33,368,970
At December 31 P=126,138,690 P=14,007,811 P=112,130,879 P=108,767,327 P=679,732 P=108,087,595

The provision for unearned premiums may be analyzed as follows:
2018          2017

Provision
for

Unearned
Premiums

Reinsurers’
Share of

Liabilities
 (Note 9) Net

Provision for
Unearned
Premiums

Reinsurers’
Share of

Liabilities
 (Note 9) Net

At January 1 P=314,744,552 P=21,474,950 P=293,269,602 P=217,274,620 P=9,497,194 P=207,777,426
New policies written during

the year (Note 17) 846,273,237 160,420,854 685,852,383 649,949,138 46,938,065 603,011,073

Premiums earned during the
year (Note 17) (765,660,843) (80,658,818) (685,002,025) (552,479,206) (34,960,309) (517,518,897)

At December 31 P=395,356,946 P=101,236,986 P=294,119,960 P=314,744,552 P=21,474,950 P=293,269,602
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13. Insurance Payables

This account consists of:

2018 2017
Due to reinsurers P=41,210,457 P=32,768,777
Funds held for reinsurers 61,776,021 728

P=102,986,478 P=32,769,505

The rollforward analysis of insurance payables follows:

Due to
Reinsurers

Funds Held
for Reinsurers Total

At January 1, 2017 P=8,577,795 P=728 P= 8,578,523
Arising during the year 42,940,802 – 42,940,802
Paid during the year (18,749,820) – (18,749,820)
At December 31, 2017 32,768,777 728 32,769,505
Arising during the year 67,084,836 61,775,293 128,860,129
Paid during the year (58,643,156) – (58,643,156)
At December 31, 2018 P=41,210,457 P=61,776,021 P=102,986,478

Due to reinsurers represents premiums payable on treaty and facultative reinsurance contracts.  These
are non-interest-bearing and are generally settled within one year.

Funds held for reinsurers pertain to the retention of a certain percentage of the reinsurer’s share of
premium. This is to protect the Company from risks associated with collections of reinsurance
recoverable on paid losses.

14. Pension Liability

The Company follows the provisions of Art. 287 of the Republic Act 7641 otherwise known as the
Labor Code of the Philippines, as Amended, by providing for retirement pay to qualified private
sector employees.

An employee upon reaching the age of sixty (60) years or more, but not beyond sixty-five (65) years
which is the compulsory retirement age, who has served at least five (5) years in the Company, may
retire and shall be entitled to retirement pay equivalent to at least one half (1/2) month salary for
every year of service, a fraction at least (6) months being considered as one year.

The retirement benefit expense recognized in profit or loss is as follows (see Note 20):

2018 2017
Current service cost P=1,132,565 P=990,434
Interest cost 360,270 241,418
Net transferred obligation (2,629,110) –

(P=1,136,275) P=1,231,852
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In 2018, the Company acquired one employee from PLI and transferred one employee to PLI and
one employee to PISC. The companies agreed that there will be no break in service due to the
transfer and that the liabilities pertaining to these employees will be transferred with no
corresponding asset transfers. The net transferred obligation is reflected in the retirement expense.

The remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income are as follows:

2018 2017
Actuarial loss (gain) due to:

Change in demographic assumptions (P=1,938,679) P=9,233
Change in financial assumptions (1,254,867) (150,730)
Experience adjustments (513,698) 876,040

(P=3,707,244) P=734,543

The rollforward analysis of pension liability follows:

2018 2017
Balance at the beginning of year P=6,256,196 P=4,289,801
Current service cost 1,132,565 990,434
Interest cost 360,270 241,418
Actuarial loss (gain) (3,707,244) 734,543
Net transferred obligation (2,629,110) –
Balance at the end of year P=1,412,677 P=6,256,196

The rollforward analysis of other comprehensive loss (income) follows:

2018 2017
At January 1 P=268,027 (P=351,648)
Change in demographic assumptions (1,938,679) 9,233
Experience adjustments (513,698) 876,040
Change in financial assumptions (1,254,867) (150,730)
At December 31, gross of consequential

income tax impact (3,439,217) 382,895
Income tax effect 1,112,173 (114,868)
Balance at the end of year (P=2,327,044) P=268,027

The principal assumptions used in determining pensions for the Company’s plan as of January 1 are
shown below:

2018 2017
Discount rate 5.80% 5.67
Rate of salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
Average future working lives (in years) 14 14
Mortality rate 2017 Philippine

Intercompany
Mortality Table

1994 Group Annuity
Mortality Basic

Table
Disability rate 1952 Disability

Study, Period 2,
Benefit 5

1952 Disability
Study, Period 2,

Benefit 5
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The discount rate as of December 31, 2018 is 7.51%. The latest actuarial valuation report of the
Company is as of December 31, 2018.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
assuming all other assumptions were held constant. The impacts on present value of defined benefit
obligation follow:

Increase (decrease)
Rate 2018 2017

Discount rates +1% (P=225,243) (P=1,060,834)
-1% 286,428 1,330,754

Future salary increases +1% 300,532 1,368,498
-1% (239,069) (1,106,149)

The maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments follow:

2018 2017
Less than 1 year P=98,893 P=89,288
1 year to less than 5 years 360,249 396,863
5 years to less than 10 years 435,931 681,982
10 years to less than 15 years 628,137 2,896,702
15 years to less than 20 years 3,025,842 20,210,987
More than 20 years 62,018,681 123,435,691

15. Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities

This account consists of:

2018 2017
Accounts payable (Note 23) P=183,192,793 P=54,359,053
Commissions payable 20,493,288 12,373,618
Taxes payable 15,409,018 5,690,156
Accrued expenses 4,330,853 8,530,990

P=223,425,952 P=80,953,817

Accounts payable consists mostly of due to related parties, advance payments from clients, and
payable to government agencies for loans availed by employees. These amounts are non-interest
bearing and are generally settled within one year.

Commissions payable represent unpaid commissions to agents arising from policy issuances. These
are non-interest bearing and are generally payable within 30 days. Commission rates vary depending
on the product line and coverage of the policy.

Taxes payable consist of documentary stamps tax, business tax, fire service tax, VAT and
withholding taxes. These are subsequently remitted within one month after the reporting date.
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Accrued expenses include professional fees of auditors and productivity incentives granted to the
Company’s employees except those under contractual employment, and other expenses accrued as of
reporting date. Productivity incentives are due on the 15th of May.

16. Equity

Capital Stock
This account consists of:

2018 2017
Shares Amount Shares Amount

Common shares - P=100 par value
Authorized, issued and outstanding 5,000,000 P=500,000,000 5,000,000 P=500,000,000

To comply with the minimum net worth requirement of P=550,000,000, the Company received
additional capital infusion from its stockholders amounting to P=1,400,011, P=35,699,999 and
P=32,899,989 on November 14, 18 and December 1, 2016, respectively (see Note 25).  Accordingly,
the Company issued 98,039 shares at P=100 par value for a total of P=9,803,900.  The remaining
balance of P=60,196,099 was recorded as contributed surplus.

17. Net Earned Premiums

Net earned premiums on insurance contracts are as follows:

2018 2017
Gross premiums written:

Direct P=748,654,547 P=576,367,235
Assumed 97,618,690 73,581,903

Total gross premiums written (Note 12) 846,273,237 649,949,138
Gross change in provision for unearned premiums

(Note 12) (80,612,394) (97,469,932)
Total gross earned premiums 765,660,843 552,479,206
Total reinsurers’ share of gross premiums written

(Note 12) 160,420,854 46,938,065
Reinsurers’ share of change in provision for

unearned premiums (Note 12) (79,762,036) (11,977,756)
Total reinsurers’ share of gross earned premiums 80,658,818 34,960,309

P=685,002,025 P=517,518,897

18. Investment Income and Other Income

This account consists of:

2018 2017
Interest income on:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) P=41,589,414 P=19,086,502
Held-to-maturity financial assets (Note 6) 22,594,461 19,253,886
Financial assets at FVPL (Note 6) 794,173 382,209
(Forward)
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2018 2017
Car plan P=117,143 P=–
Funds held by ceding companies 19,095 16,329

Gain on service award liability 3,669,040 –
Fair value loss on financial assets at FVPL (Note 6) (1,137,855) (330,903)

P=67,645,471 P=38,408,023

19. Insurance Contract Benefits and Claims Paid

Gross insurance contract benefits and claims paid follow:

2018 2017
Direct P=113,326,853 P=78,772,751
Assumed 28,289,429 31,770,210

P=141,616,282 P=110,542,961

In 2018 and 2017, the reinsurers’ share of insurance contracts benefits and claims paid from direct
insurance contracts amounted to P=17,514,482 and P=17,213,760, respectively (see Note 12).

20. General Expenses

This account consists of:

2018 2017
Business development P=45,718,245 P=22,782,215
Salaries, allowances and benefits 43,168,313 36,038,378
Transportation and travel 19,927,334 6,619,038
Meetings and conferences 4,884,536 671,132
Office supplies, printing and stationery 4,882,967 4,391,560
Advertising 3,827,158 1,360,495
Depreciation and amortization (Note 11) 2,904,666 2,293,260
Rent expense (Note 24) 1,983,507 1,403,325
Representation and entertainment 1,666,199 4,002,127
Communication, light and water 1,658,711 805,438
Professional fees 1,091,250 391,889
Training 864,263 3,271,898
Service Fees 842,520 351,684
Taxes and licenses 686,949 358,396
Janitorial and contractual services 642,459 781,376
Association dues 632,427 536,859
Repairs and maintenance 215,871 266,427
Director's fee 210,000 150,000
Insurance 128,704 132,987
Underwriting expense 128,151 166,327
Pension expense (income) (Note 14) (1,136,275) 1,231,852
Miscellaneous expenses 127,608 421,133

P=135,055,563 P=88,427,796
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21. Income Tax

The provision for income tax consists of:

2018 2017
RCIT P=108,604,889 P=85,322,169
Final 13,391,573 8,211,924
Deferred 4,024,318 (10,088,225)

P=126,020,780 P=83,445,868
The components of recognized deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities follow:

2018 2017
Deferred tax assets:

Provision for IBNR P=27,150,624 P=28,677,641
Accrued and other expenses 1,256,878 2,531,205
Pension liability 423,803 1,876,859
Allowance for impairment loss 84,551 84,551
Unrealized foreign currency exchange loss – 108,663

28,915,856 33,278,919
Deferred tax liability:

Unrealized foreign currency exchange loss 773,427 –
P=28,142,429 P=33,278,919

The reconciliation of provision for income tax computed at statutory income tax rate to the provision
for income tax reported in the statements of income follows:

2018 2017
Statutory income tax P=131,781,265 P=88,136,388
Add (deduct) the tax effects of:

Interest income subject to final tax (6,101,842) (3,404,856)
Fair value loss (gain) on financial asset at FVPL 341,357 99,271
Change in unrecognized deferred tax assets – (1,392,435)
Nondeductible expenses – 7,500

Provision for income tax P=126,020,780 P=83,445,868

22. Reconciliation of Net Income under PFRS to Statutory Net Income

The reconciliation of net income under PFRS to statutory net income follows:

2018 2017
Net income under PFRS P=313,250,103 P=210,342,091
Add (deduct):

Deferred acquisition costs - net – 23,199,168
 Difference in change in provision for

unearned premiums - net – (21,386,001)
Tax effect on the reconciling items – (543,950)

Statutory net income P=313,250,103 P=211,611,308

The final statutory net income will only be determined after the accounts of the Company has been
examined by the Insurance Commission.
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23. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party, or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions.  Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common
significant influence.
Transactions with related parties are made at normal market prices.  Outstanding balances as of
year-end are unsecured, interest free and settled in cash.  There have been no guarantees provided or
received for any related party receivables or payables.  For the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by
related parties.  This assessment is undertaken each financial year by examining the financial position
of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

Significant related party transactions are summarized below:

2018

Category Volume
Outstanding

balance Terms Conditions
Entities under common control
PISC

Due from ceding company (a)
(Note 5)

P=76,336,734 P=67,493,722 Non-interest-bearing,
due and demandable

Unsecured, not
impaired

Due to ceding company (a)
(Note 13)

87,875,186 64,431,839

Claims and accounts payable
        (c) (Note 15)

29,732,782 7,737,808 Non-interest-bearing,
due and demandable

Unsecured

Rent expense (b) (Note 24) 874,692 – Non-interest-bearing,
due and demandable

Unsecured

PLI
     Accounts payable (c) (Note 15) 413,836,532 99,834,612 Non-interest-bearing,

due and demandable
Unsecured

PIIC
Due from ceding company (a)
          (Note 5)

605,012 58,768 Non-interest-bearing,
due and demandable

Unsecured, not
impaired

CAMIA
Commission and accounts

payable (d) (Note 15)
34,503,681 12,930,565 Non-interest-bearing,

due and demandable
Unsecured

CAMIA
Premium receivables (d)

(Note 5)
30,396,156 1,249,784 Non-interest-bearing,

due and demandable
Unsecured, not

impaired
CARD MBA

Claims and accounts payable
(d) (Notes 12 and 15)

2,126,952 1,778,553 Non-interest-bearing,
due and demandable

Unsecured

MPII
Due from ceding company (a)

(Note 5)
680,892 140,937 Non-interest-bearing,

due and demandable
Unsecured, not

impaired

2017

Category Volume
Outstanding

balance Terms Conditions
Entities under common control
PISC

Due from ceding company (a)
        (Note 5)

P=50,793,123 P=10,688,001 Non-interest-bearing,
due and demandable

Unsecured, not
impaired

Claims and accounts payable
(c) (Note 15)

25,118,275 4,229,185 Non-interest-bearing,
due and demandable

Unsecured

Rent expense (b) (Note 24) 807,408 – Non-interest-bearing,
due and demandable

Unsecured
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2017

Category Volume
Outstanding

balance Terms Conditions
PLI
     Accounts payable (c) (Note 15) P=354,286,478 P=27,578,348 Non-interest-bearing,

due and demandable
Unsecured

PIIC
Due from ceding company (a)

(Note 5)
202,055 92,327 Non-interest-bearing,

due and demandable
Unsecured, not

impaired
CAMIA

Commission and accounts
payable (d) (Note 15)

44,684,880 12,699,430 Non-interest-bearing,
due and demandable

Unsecured

(Forward)
CARD MBA

Premium receivables (d)
(Note 5)

474,031,675 7,029,776 Non-interest-bearing,
due and demandable

Unsecured, not
impaired

Claims and accounts payable
(d) (Notes 12 and 15)

4,380,322 4,380,322 Non-interest-bearing,
due and demandable

Unsecured

The Company’s related party transactions pertain to the following:

a. In the ordinary course of business, the Company accepts and cedes insurance business under
various reinsurance contracts with PISC, PLI, PIIC and MPII.  Amounts of due to and due from
PISC, PLI, PIIC and MPII are the outstanding insurance balances related to these acceptances
and cessions.

b. The Company has a lease contract with PISC on the lease of its office space, which is renewable
annually (see Note 24).

c. The Company has receivables from (payables to) PLI which represent share on the premium
payment and accommodations for claim payments.

d. The Company has receivables from (payables to) CAMIA, CARD MBA and PLI which
represent reimbursement of expenses.

e. Compensation of key management personnel of the Company, included in as part of “Director’s
fee” amounted to P=210,000 in 2018 and P=150,000 in 2017 (see Note 20).

24. Operating Lease Commitment

The Company has entered into various lease agreement for its office space with PISC (see Note 23)
and for its pilot offices.  The leases have term of one (1) year. The Company incurred rent expense of
P=1,983,507 in 2018 and P=1,403,325 in 2017 (see Note 20).

Future minimum rentals under the operating lease agreement amounted to P=693,129 and P=490,016 as
of December 31, 2018 and 2017, which are all payable within one (1) year.

25. Capital Management

The Company maintains a certain level of capital to ensure sufficient solvency margins and to
adequately protect the policyholders.  The level of capital maintained is usually higher than the
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minimum capital requirements set by the regulators and the amount computed under the Risk-Based
Capital (RBC) Model.

To ensure compliance with these externally imposed capital requirements, it is the Company’s policy
to monitor the paid-up capital, net worth and RBC requirements on a quarterly basis as part of the
Company’s internal financial reporting process.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company fully complied with the externally-imposed capital
requirements during the reported financial periods.  These are the fixed capitalization requirement
and RBC requirement.
Fixed Capitalization Requirements
On January 13, 2015, the Insurance Commission issued Circular Letter No. 2015-02-A clarifying the
minimum capitalization and net worth requirements of new and existing insurance companies in the
Philippines.  Based on the said Circular Letter, all domestic life and non-life insurance companies
duly licensed by the Insurance Commission must have a net worth of at least P=550,000,000 by
December 31, 2016.

The minimum net worth of the said companies shall remain unimpaired at all times and shall increase
to the amounts as follows:

Minimum Net worth Compliance Date
P=550,000,000 December 31 ,2016

900,000,000 December 31, 2019
1,300,000,000 December 31, 2022

As of December 31, 2015, the Company’s net worth is only P=480,648,456. To comply with the
requirement of IC, the Company received additional capital infusion amounting to P=1,400,011,
P=35,699,999 and P=32,899,989 on November 14, November 18, and December 1, 2016, respectively
from the following stockholders:

Stockholder

Additional
Shares

Subscribed

Amount of
Additional

Subscription

Share in
Contributed

Surplus

Total
Amount
Infused

Pioneer Insurance & Surety Corporation 48,604 P=4,860,400 P=28,823,411 P=33,683,811
CARD Mutual Benefit Association – – 27,737,412 27,737,412
CARD MRI Insurance Agency, Inc. 48,039 4,803,900 1,758,688 6,562,588
Pioneer Life Inc. 1,396 139,600 857,287 996,887
Pioneer Intercontinental Insurance Corp. – – 890,361 890,361
Pioneer Life Holdings, Inc. – – 128,940 128,940

98,039 P=9,803,900 P=60,196,099 P=69,999,999

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company has complied with the minimum net worth
requirement.

RBC Requirements
For purposes of the December 31, 2018 and 2017 financial reporting, the Company determined its
compliance with the RBC requirements of the IC based on the provisions of CL No. 2016-68. This
circular provides RBC frameworks for nonlife insurance companies in order to establish the required
amounts of capital to be maintained by the companies in relation to their investment and insurance
risks.  Every nonlife insurance company is annually required to maintain a minimum required RBC
ratio of 100% and not fail the trend test.  Failure to meet the minimum RBC ratio shall subject the
nonlife insurance company to the corresponding regulatory intervention which has been defined at
various levels.
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If the Company failed to meet the minimum required statutory net worth and RBC requirements, the
IC is authorized to suspend or revoke all certificates of authority granted to the Company, its officers
and agents, and no new business shall be borne by and for the Company until its authority is restored
by the IC.

Pursuant to IC CL No. 2017-15, Regulatory Requirements and Actions for the New Regulatory
Framework, effective January 1, 2017, nonlife insurance companies are required to maintain
minimum RBC2 requirement as prescribed under IC CL No. 2016-68.  Under the RBC2 Framework,
the RBC ratio shall be calculated as total available capital divided by the RBC2 requirement. The
following table shows the estimated RBC ratio as of December 31, 2018 as determined by the
Company based on the RBC2 Framework:

Total available capital P=1,185,088,645
RBC2 requirement 219,822,864
RBC2 ratio 539%

The final amount of the RBC ratio can only be determined after the accounts of the Company have
been examined by the IC.

The total available capital shall be the aggregate of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital minus deductions,
subject to applicable limits and determinations.  Tier 1 capital represents capital that is fully available
to cover losses of the insurer at all times on a going-concern and winding up basis. This capital is
considered to be the highest quality capital available to the insurer.  Tier 2 Capital does not have the
same high quality characteristics of Tier 1 capital, but can provide an additional buffer to the insurer.
Tier 2 capital shall not exceed 50% of Tier 1 Capital.

The RBC requirement shall be the capital that is required to be held appropriately to the risks an
insurance company is exposed to, computed using the formula as prescribed under IC CL
No. 2016-68.

Financial Reporting Framework
IC CL No. 2016-65, Financial Reporting Framework under Section 189 of the Amended Insurance
Code, prescribes the new financial reporting framework (FRF) that will be used for the statutory
quarterly and annual reporting. This also includes rules and regulations concerning Titles III and IV
of Chapter III of the Amended Insurance Code and all other accounts not discussed in the Amended
Insurance Code but are used in accounting of insurance and reinsurance companies.

IC CL No. 2018-18, Valuation Standards for Nonlife Insurance Policy Reserves, prescribes valuation
methodology for the nonlife insurance companies. In addition to the unearned premium reserves, the
concept of unexpired risk reserves is also included in the calculation of the premium liability.  The
IBNR claims reserves are computed using actuarial projection techniques such as but not limited to
the Chain ladder method, Expected loss ratio method and Bornheutter-Ferguson method.  A margin
for adverse deviation is computed at least on an annual basis based on standard projections
techniques, such as but not limited to the Mack method, Bootstrapping method, Stochastic Chain
Ladder method to bring the actuarial estimate of Policy Liabilities at the 75th percentile level of
sufficiency and shall be incorporated on both premiums and claims liability valuation.  Discount rates
to be used shall be based on the latest PDST-R2 rates and the Bloomberg IYC Curve for PhP and
USD-denominated policies, respectively.

Unexpired Risk Reserves (URR) refers to the amount of reserve required to cover future claims,
commission and expenses at a designated level of confidence, that are expected to emerge from an
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unexpired period of cover. Starting 2018, the premiums liabilities shall be determined in accordance
with the valuation standards prescribed under IC CL No. 2018-18 which is the higher between the
UPR and URR.

26. Management of Insurance and Financial Risk

Insurance Risk
The risk under insurance contract is the possibility of occurrence of insured event and uncertainty of
the amount and timing of the resulting claim.  The principal risk the Company faces under such
contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of insurance
liabilities.  This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims and actual benefits paid
are greater than originally estimated.

The variability of risks is improved by diversification of risk of loss to a large portfolio of insurance
contracts as a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board by change in any
subset of the portfolio.  The variability of risks can also be improved by careful selection and
implementation of underwriting strategy and guidelines.

The majority of reinsurance business ceded is placed on a quota share basis with retention limits.
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the assumptions used
for ascertaining the underlying policy benefits and are presented in the statements of financial
position as reinsurance assets.

Although the Company has reinsurance agreements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations to its
policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to reinsurance ceded, to the extent that
any reinsurers is unable to meet its obligations assumed under such reinsurance agreements.

The Company’s placement of reinsurance is diversified such that it is neither dependent on a single
reinsurer nor are the operations of the Company substantially dependent upon any single reinsurance
contract.

The business of the Company mainly comprises of short-term nonlife insurance contracts.

The Company principally issues the following types of general insurance contracts: fire, engineering,
marine, motor car, personal accident and miscellaneous casualty.

The table below sets out the concentration of the claims liabilities by type of contract (see Note 12).

2018

Gross Claims
Liabilities

Reinsurers’
Share of Claims

Liabilities Net
Accident P=112,338,475 P=13,688,333 P=98,650,142
Fire 4,053,811 319,478 3,734,333
Engineering 2,106,168 – 2,106,168
Motor 1,508,199 – 1,508,199
General accident 4,756,392 – 4,756,392
Aviation 401,097 – 401,097
Marine Cargo 974,548 – 974,548

P=126,138,690 P=14,007,811 P=112,130,879

Audited Financial Report 61



- 38 -

*SGVFS035244*

2017

Gross Claims
Liabilities

Reinsurers’
Share of Claims

Liabilities Net
Accident P=90,877,568 P=– P=90,877,568
Fire 9,457,615 679,732 8,777,883
Engineering 3,818,699 – 3,818,699
Motor 2,059,789 – 2,059,789
General accident 1,491,670 – 1,491,670
Aviation 591,494 – 591,494
Marine Cargo 470,492 – 470,492

P=108,767,327 P=679,732 P=108,087,595

Key assumptions
The principal assumption underlying the estimates is the Company’s past claims development
experience.  This includes assumptions in respect of average claim costs, claims handling costs,
claims inflation factors and number of claims for each accident year.  Judgment is used to assess the
extent to which external factors such as judicial decisions and government legislation affect the
estimates.

Other key assumptions include variations in interest, delays in settlement and changes in foreign
currency rates.

Sensitivities
The insurance claims provision is sensitive to the above key assumptions.  Because of delays that
arise between occurrence of a claim and its subsequent notification and eventual settlement, the
outstanding claim provisions are not known with certainty at the reporting dates.

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all
other assumptions held constant, showing the impact on gross and net liabilities and income before
income tax.  The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate
claims liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in assumptions, assumptions had to
be changed on an individual basis.  It should be noted that movements in these assumptions are
nonlinear.

2018

Change in
Assumptions

Impact on
Gross Insurance

Contract
Liabilities

Impact on
Net Insurance

Contract
Liabilities

Impact on
Income Before

Income Tax
Average claim costs + 10% 19,748,317 16,902,521 (16,902,521)
Average number of claims + 10% 11,563,638 9,897,280 (9,897,280)

2017

Change in
Assumptions

Impact on
Gross Insurance

Contract
Liabilities

Impact on
Net Insurance

Contract
Liabilities

Impact on
Income Before

Income Tax
Average claim costs +10% P=16,121,022 P=13,866,503 (P=13,866,503)
Average number of claims +10% 8,572,559 7,373,690 (7,373,690)

Average claim costs and number of claims used for valuation are selected with consideration for
statutory requirements, as specified in the Code.
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The method used for deriving sensitivity information and significant assumptions did not change
from the previous period.

Claims development table
The following tables reflect the cumulative incurred claims, including both claims notified and claim
IBNR, for each successive accident year at each statement of financial position date, together with
cumulative payment to date.

Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities for 2018

Accident year
2014 and

Prior Years 2015 2016 2017 2018 Total
Estimate of ultimate claim costs
At the end of accident year P=158,849,714 P=129,126,871 P=73,275,658 P=120,464,762 P=158,987,645 P=158,987,645
One year later 158,849,714 129,126,871 73,275,658 120,464,762 – 120,464,762
Two years later 158,849,714 129,126,871 73,275,658 – – 73,275,658
Three years later 158,849,714 129,126,871 – – – 129,126,871
Four years later 159,178,668 – – – – 159,178,668
Current estimate of cumulative claims 159,178,668 129,126,871 73,275,658 120,464,762 158,987,645 641,033,604
Cumulative payments to date 132,356,146 58,183,011 72,196,514 110,542,961 141,616,282 514,894,914
Liability recognized in the statements

of financial position P=26,822,522 P=70,943,860 P=1,079,144 P=9,921,801 P=17,371,363 P=126,138,690

Net Insurance Contract Liabilities for 2018

Accident year
2014 and

Prior Years 2015 2016 2017 2018 Total
Estimate of ultimate claim costs
At the end of accident year P=127,794,680 P=115,023,417 P=87,291,728 P=102,625,416 P=128,145,084 P=128,145,084
One year later 127,794,680 115,023,417 87,291,728 102,625,416 – 102,625,416
Two years later 127,794,680 115,023,417 87,291,728 – – 87,291,728
Three years later 127,794,680 115,023,417 – – – 115,023,417
Four years later 128,025,186 – – – – 128,025,186
Current estimate of cumulative claims 128,025,186 115,023,417 87,291,728 102,625,416 128,145,084 561,110,831
Cumulative payments to date 101,301,112 58,069,407 72,178,432 93,329,201 124,101,800 448,979,952
Liability recognized in the statements

of financial position P=26,724,074 P=56,954,010 P=15,113,296 P=9,296,215 P=4,043,284 P=112,130,879

Governance Framework
The Company has established a risk management function with clear terms of reference and with the
responsibility for developing group wide policies on credit, liquidity and market risk.  It also supports
the effective implementation of policies at the overall group and the individual business unit levels.

The policies define the Company’s identification of risk and its interpretation, its limit structure to
ensure the appropriate quality and diversification of assets, the alignment of underwriting and
reinsurance strategy to the corporate goals and the specification of reporting requirements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Due to short-term nature of cash and cash equivalents, insurance receivables, interest receivable,
insurance payables, and trade and other payables, the carrying values reasonably approximate fair
value as of the reporting date.

The fair values of financial assets at FVPL, categorized as Level 1, were determined using quoted
market prices.  For the unquoted equity securities, these are carried at cost less allowance for
impairment losses due to unpredictable nature of future cash flows and the lack of other suitable
methods of arriving at a reliable fair value.
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Due to the long-term nature of the HTM investments, its carrying value differs from its fair value.
The fair value of HTM investments, categorized as Level 1, is based on the quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting date.  The fair value of HTM investments amounted to P=469,892,091 and
P=497,014,584 as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.  As of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
the Company classifies all of its quoted financial assets under Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.
There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements and no transfers into
and out of Level 3 fair value measurement.

Financial Risk
The Company is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets and financial liabilities,
particularly, credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (foreign exchange, interest rate, and equity
price risks).  The Company’s risk management policies and practices are documented in the
subsequent paragraphs.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss arising from its counterparties that fail to
discharge their contractual obligations.

Prior to extending credit, the Company manages its credit risk by assessing the credit quality of its
counterparty.  The Company has a credit policy group that reviews all information about the
counterparty which may include its statements of financial position, statements of income, statements
of comprehensive income and other market information and implements the internal rating system of
the Company.  The nature of the obligation is likewise considered.  Based on this analysis, the credit
analyst assigns the counterparty a credit rating to determine whether or not credit may be provided.

Credit risk limit is also used to manage credit exposure which specifies credit limit for each
intermediary depending on the size of its portfolio and its ability to meet its obligation based on past
experience.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the carrying values of the Company’s financial instruments
represent the maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date.

The following table provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the Company by
classifying financial assets according to credit ratings of the counterparties:

2018

Investment
Grade

Below
Investment

Grade
Past Due or

Impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents* P=1,250,737,800 P=– P=– P=1,250,737,800
Insurance receivables
 Premiums receivable 54,777,977 – 13,509,811 68,287,788
 Due from ceding companies 25,472,685 – 40,835,674 66,308,359
 Funds held by ceding companies 295,666 – 2,731,841 3,027,507
     Reinsurance recoverable on paid

losses 12,601,061 – 644,532 13,245,593
FVPL financial assets
     Corporate debt securities 37,120,669 – – 37,120,669
AFS financial assets
 Unquoted equity securities 20,000 – – 20,000
HTM investments
 Government debt securities 499,663,463 – – 499,663,463
Interest receivable 10,168,787 – – 10,168,787

P=1,890,858,108 P=– P=57,721,858 P=1,948,579,966
* Cash and cash equivalents exclude cash on hand.
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2017

Investment
Grade

Below
Investment

Grade
Past Due or

Impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents* P=872,653,764 P=– P=– P=872,653,764
Insurance receivables
 Premiums receivable 6,751,287 – 9,848,763 16,600,050
 Due from ceding companies 10,122,651 – 1,396,287 11,518,938
 Funds held by ceding companies 955,934 – 1,696,467 2,652,401

 Reinsurance recoverable on paid
losses 13,416,385 – 364,297 13,780,682

FVPL financial assets
     Corporate debt securities 8,258,524 – – 8,258,524
AFS financial assets
 Unquoted equity securities 20,000 – – 20,000
HTM investments
 Government debt securities 501,865,206 – – 501,865,206
Interest receivable 6,765,554 – – 6,765,554

P=1,420,809,305 P=– P=13,305,814 P=1,434,115,119
* Cash and cash equivalents exclude cash on hand.

Investment grade financial assets are assets which have strong capacity to meet the Company’s
financial commitments and are unsusceptible to adverse effects of changes in economic conditions.

Below investment grade financial assets are assets which are vulnerable to impairment due to the
assets’ significant speculative characteristics.  Adverse economic conditions will likely impair below
investment grade financial assets.

The aging analysis of past due financial assets follows:

2018
Past due but not impaired

30 days
past due

60 days
past due

      More than
60 days

past due

Total
past due but
not impaired Impaired Total

Premiums receivable P=1,287,065 P=4,549,222 P=7,673,524 P=13,509,811 P=– P=13,509,811
Due from ceding

companies 4,746,530 1,290,233 34,798,911 40,835,674 – 40,835,674
Funds held by ceding

companies 32 – 2,731,809 2,731,841 – 2,731,841
Reinsurance recoverable

on paid losses – – 411,921 411,921 232,611 644,532
P=6,033,627 P=5,839,455 P=45,616,165 P=57,489,247 P=232,611 P=57,721,858

2017
Past due but not impaired

30 days
past due

60 days
past due

More than
60 days

past due

Total
past due but
not impaired Impaired Total

Premiums receivable P=772,235 P=2,653,209 P=6,423,319 P=9,848,763 P=– P=9,848,763
Due from ceding

 companies 716,227 – 680,060 1,396,287 – 1,396,287
Funds held by ceding

companies – – 1,696,467 1,696,467 – 1,696,467
Reinsurance recoverable on

paid losses – – 131,686 131,686 232,611 364,297
P=1,488,462 P=2,653,209 P=8,931,532 P=13,073,203 P=232,611 P=13,305,814

The Company considers premiums receivable as past due when it is outstanding for more than 90
days. Funds held by ceding companies, due from ceding companies premiums receivable,
reinsurance recoverable on paid losses, and are treated as past due when outstanding for more than
180 days.
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The credit quality of the financial assets was determined as follows:

a. Cash and cash equivalents
These are classified as investment grade.  These are deposited, placed or invested in local banks
belonging to the top banks in the Philippines in terms of resources and profitability.

b. Insurance receivables
The Company uses a credit rating concept based on the borrower’s overall credit worthiness.
Investment grade is given to borrowers and counterparties having good standing in terms of
credit and paying habits and their outstanding account balance does not exceed 30% of their total
production.  Below investment grade is given to borrowers and counterparties having low
standing in terms of credit and paying habits and their outstanding balance exceeds 50% of their
total production.

c. Debt securities
These are classified as investment grade.  The government debt securities are issued by local
government authority and are considered as risk-free debt securities.

d. Equity securities
Equity securities subject to other-than-temporary decline are classified as investment grade.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity or funding risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitments as they fall due.  Liquidity risks may result from either the inability to sell financial
assets quickly at their fair values, the counterparty failing to repay a contractual obligation, insurance
liabilities falling due for payment earlier than expected, or inability to generate cash inflows as
anticipated.

An institution may suffer from a liquidity problem when its credit rating falls.  The Company is also
exposed to liquidity risk if markets on which it depends are subject to loss of liquidity.  The major
liquidity risk confronting the Company is the potential daily calls on its available cash resources in
respect of claims arising from insurance contracts.

The Company manages liquidity through a liquidity risk policy which determines what constitutes
liquidity risk for the Company, specifies minimum proportion of funds to meet emergency calls, sets
up policies on contingency funding plans, specifies the sources of funding and the events that would
trigger the plan as wells as concentration of funding sources, requires reporting of liquidity risk
exposures and breaches to the monitoring authority, and calls for monitoring of compliance with
liquidity risk policy and review of liquidity risk policy.

The tables on the next page group the financial assets and liabilities of the Company as of
December 31 into their relevant maturity groups based on the remaining period at the reporting date
to their undiscounted contractual maturities or expected repayment dates.
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2018

Up to a year 1-3 years  More than
3 years

No
Maturity Date Total

Loans and receivable
Cash and cash equivalents P=1,251,013,800 P=– P=– P=– P=1,251,013,800
Insurance receivables 150,636,636 – – – 150,636,636
Interest receivable 10,168,787 – – – 10,168,787

FVPL financial assets
Corporate debt securities 2,634,000 5,268,000 43,729,488 – 51,631,488

AFS financial assets
Unquoted equity securities – – – 20,000 20,000

HTM investments 24,767,250 345,888,000 237,725,656 – 608,380,906
Total financial assets P=1,439,220,473 P=351,156,000 P=281,455,144 P=20,000 P=2,071,851,617

Other financial liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities P=521,495,636 P=– P=– P=– P=521,495,636
Insurance payables 102,986,478 – – – 102,986,478
Accounts payable and other

liabilities* 207,826,966 – – 189,968 208,016,934
Total financial liabilities P=832,309,080 P=– P=– P=189,968 P=832,499,048
*Accounts payable and other liabilities exclude taxes payables

2017

Up to a year 1-3 years
 More than

3 years
No

Maturity Date Total
Loans and receivable

Cash and cash equivalents P=872,802,264 P=– P=– P=– P=872,802,264
Insurance receivables 44,319,460 – – – 44,319,460
Interest receivable 6,765,554 – – – 6,765,554

FVPL financial assets
Corporate debt securities 381,150 762,300 9,041,725 – 10,185,175

AFS financial assets
Unquoted equity securities – – – 20,000 20,000

HTM investments 24,767,250 340,665,750 267,715,156 – 633,148,156
Total financial assets P=949,035,678 P=341,428,050 P=276,756,881 P=20,000 P=1,567,240,609

Other financial liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities P=423,511,879 P=– P=– P=– P=423,511,879
Insurance payables 32,769,505 – – – 32,769,505
Accounts payable and other

liabilities* 71,617,661 – – 3,646,000 75,263,661
Total financial liabilities P=527,899,045 P=– P=– P=3,646,000 P=531,545,045
*Accounts payable and other liabilities exclude taxes payables.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk of changes in fair value of financial instruments from fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates (currency risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk) and market prices (price risk),
whether such changes is caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or factors
affecting all instruments traded in the market.

The Company manages market risk by evenly distributing capital among investment instruments,
sectors and geographical areas.

The Company structures levels of market risk it accepts through a sound market risk policy based on
specific guidelines set by an Investment Committee.  This policy sets certain limits on exposure to
investments mostly with top-rated banks, which are selected on the basis of the banks’ credit ratings,
capitalization and quality servicing being rendered to the Company.
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Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Company’s principal transactions are carried out in Philippine Peso and
its exposure to foreign exchange risk is minimal.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value/future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The following table sets out the Company’s financial instruments exposed to interest rate risk by
maturity.

2018
Range of

Interest Rate Up to a year 1 to 3 years
More than

 3 years Total
Cash and cash equivalents* 1.75% - 7.00% P=1,250,737,800 P=– P=– P=1,250,737,800
FVPL investments 4.50% - 7.51% – 37,120,669 37,120,669
HTM investments 3.38 - 8.00% – 315,984,991 183,678,472 499,663,463
Total interest-bearing financial

assets P=1,250,737,800 P=315,984,991 P=220,799,141 P=1,787,521,932
Premium reserve withheld for

treaty reinsurers 6.00% P=61,776,021 P=– P=– P=61,776,021
Total interest-bearing financial

liabilities P=61,776,021 P=– P=– P=61,776,021
*Cash and cash equivalents exclude cash on hand

2017
Range of

Interest Rate Up to a year 1 to 3 years
More than

 3 years Total
Cash and cash equivalents* 1.75% - 2.75% P=872,653,764 P=– P=– P=872,653,764
FVPL investments 4.50% – – 8,258,524 8,258,524
HTM investments 3.38% - 8.00% – 297,394,775 204,470,432 501,865,207
Total interest-bearing financial

assets P=872,653,764 P=297,394,775 P=212,728,956 P=1,382,777,495
Premium reserve withheld for

treaty reinsurers 6.00% P=728 P=– P=– P=728
Total interest-bearing financial

liabilities P=728 P=– P=– P=728
*Cash and cash equivalents exclude cash on hand.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, with all variables held constant, through the impact on changes in fair
value of quoted debt securities.

Effect on net income
Increase (decrease)

Change in basis points: 2018 2017
+100 basis points (P=4,235,997) (P=1,690,814)
-100 basis points 4,235,997 1,690,814

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company’s investments relate primarily to fixed-rate debt
securities that are classified as HTM investments carried at amortized cost.

Equity price risk
The Company’s price risk exposure at year-end relates mainly to the Company’s AFS financial assets
whose values will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.
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The Company’s market risk policy requires it to manage such risks by setting and monitoring
objectives and constraints on investments, diversification plan, and limits on investment in each
country, sector and market.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company has no significant exposure on equity price risk.

27. Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are
expected to be recorded and settled.

2018
Less than
12 months

Over 12
Months Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents P=1,251,013,800 P=– P=1,251,013,800
Insurance receivables - net 150,636,636 – 150,636,636
Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss – 37,120,669 37,120,669
Available-for-sale financial assets – 20,000 20,000
Held-to-maturity investments – 499,663,463 499,663,463

Interest receivable 10,168,787 – 10,168,787
Deferred acquisition costs 18,496,501 – 18,496,501
Reinsurance assets 115,195,573 – 115,195,573
Investment property – 10 10
Property and equipment – 5,630,057 5,630,057
Deferred tax asset - net – 28,142,429 28,142,429
Other assets 35,371,156 48,438 35,419,594

P=1,580,882,453 P=570,625,066 P=2,151,507,519
LIABILITIES
Insurance contract liabilities P=521,495,636 P=– P=521,495,636
Insurance payables 102,986,478 – 102,986,478
Deferred reinsurance commissions 12,686,452 – 12,686,452
Pension liability – 1,412,676 1,412,677
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 223,235,984 189,968 223,425,952
Income tax payable 70,639,192 – 70,639,192

P=931,043,742 P=1,602,644 P=932,646,387

2017
Less than
12 months

Over 12
Months Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents P=872,802,264 P=– P=872,802,264
Insurance receivables - net 44,319,460 – 44,319,460
Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss – 8,258,524 8,258,524
Available-for-sale financial assets – 20,000 20,000
Held-to-maturity investments – 501,865,206 501,865,206

Interest receivable 6,765,554 – 6,765,554
Deferred acquisition costs 20,651,671 – 20,651,671
Reinsurance assets 22,105,458 – 22,105,458
Investment property – 10 10

(Forward)
Property and equipment P=– P=4,267,196 P=4,267,196
Deferred tax asset - net – 33,278,919 33,278,919
Other assets 17,463,630 44,226 17,507,856

P=984,108,037 P=547,734,081 P=1,531,842,118
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2017
Less than
12 months

Over 12
Months Total

LIABILITIES
Insurance contract liabilities P=423,511,879 P=– P=423,511,879
Insurance payables 32,769,505 – 32,769,505
Deferred reinsurance commissions 13,953 – 13,953
Pension liability – 6,256,196 6,256,196
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 77,307,817 3,646,000 80,953,817
Income tax payable 85,320,810 – 85,320,810

P=618,923,964 P=9,902,196 P=628,826,160

28. Supplementary Tax Information Required under Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 15-2010

In compliance with the requirements set forth by RR No. 15-2010 hereunder are the information on
taxes and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year.

VAT
The Company is a VAT-registered company with VAT output tax declaration of P=5,191,353 for the
year based on the amount reflected in the net insurance premiums of P=43,261,283.

The amount of VAT input taxes claimed are broken down as follows:

Balance at January 1, 2018 P=8,837,647
Current year’s purchases:

Services 6,216,507
Goods other than for resale 841,550
Capital goods not subject to amortization 115,400

16,011,104
Input tax deferred for the succeeding quarters (170,450)
Input VAT applied to output VAT (5,191,353)

P=10,649,301

Other Taxes and Licenses
The taxes and licenses paid and claimed by the Company in 2018 are as follows:

Local
Real property tax P=77,821
Others 27,889
Community tax certificate 10,500
Barangay clearance 2,570

118,780

National
Payment for Certificate of Authority P=181,800
Fees and charges paid to IC 160,255
Supervision fees paid to IC 154,200
Filing fee for 2017 Annual Statement 40,400
Filing and approval fees paid to IPO P=15,425
Registration of Books of Accounts 5,000
(Forward)
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LTO registration 2,469
Renewal of VAT registration 1,500
Others 7,120

568,169
P=686,949

The Company has taxes relating to nonlife insurance policies that has been shifted or passed on to the
policy holders and are not recognized in the statement of income.  Details are as follows:

Premium tax P=15,346,873
Documentary stamps tax 5,488,324
Local government tax 1,916,038
Fire service tax 451,468

P=23,202,703

Withholding Taxes
The amount of expanded withholding taxes paid and accrued for the year amounted to:

Expanded withholding taxes P=5,970,529
Withholding taxes on compensation and benefits 649,677

P=6,620,206

Tax Assessments and Cases
The Company has no deficiency tax assessment or any tax case, litigation, and/or prosecution in
courts or bodies outside the Bureau of Internal Revenue as of December 31, 2018.
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